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Shang Properttes is commltted to be
. the leading developer a_nd_manager S
_' ofp_rirne properﬁés in the Philippines. =

: Our M ission
Leadmg thruugh pmduct inn nvatiun
Delrght[ng with excellent service: ;
Fostering fair treatment and mutual respect
- Empowering people to attain their fuII putentlai
Uphnldlng good carpnrate cmzenshjp

C over Stﬂ ry

Green, representlng gmwth and
- prosperity, parallels the upward
momentum of Shang Properties
“Inc, while gemstone facets
symbolize multiple expa nsion:
projects it has undertaken during
~the year, With growth channels
in place; the company is ready 1o,
explore its Limitless Potential.
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THE RISE MAKATI

The comupanys newest esidential offering, The Rise, made a
huge splash during its introductony year in 2014 with 2 strang
sales performance that generated Phpd S8 billion in revenues
from the of sale of 1,488 units or nearly half of the total 3,044
LINIES i s inventorny,

i termns of gross floor area, The Rise sold 47 000 square meters
during the vear, or 44.1% of its total GEA of 10&480sgm.

Located just north of Ayala Avenug along Malugay STreet in
whal is now known as the MNorth Makati or Noha, The Rise is
a towering architectural landmark of 63 storeys that offers &
niw lifestiyle concapt in an area that is teeming with galleriss,
delicatessens angd bistros, indie rmusic venues and unigue
relait destinations.

The Rise features cozy and exceptional amenities such ai The
Harigout, a 300sgm open lounge that is idesl for entertaining
triengds and families for any occasion or simply for just a chat
aver coffee

Ariisits Rendering

There is also The Workshop, which as the name suggests, 15 rmeant
fiot weark, meetings or studying, |t offers an [T bar, a lbrary, reading
and meeting rooms, and cther quiel work spaces.

For relaxation, there is The Mest o provide 2 welcome refuge from
the hustle and bustle of city life. Whether just getting lost with a
good read, hanging around in the garden terraces ar curling ug in
& hammock, The Nest is a tranquil zone right within the confines of
your building.

ther features of The Rise include a 28-meter tropical poot and
children’s pool, a jogging path set amid the greens, a children’s play
space, a barbecus patio, and & fully equipped and modern gym
suitad for training and exercise. The Rise’s amenities has something
10 offer for every mermber of the farmily

The Rise residential units sit on top of 2 two-level boutique matl
that will house mare than 50 retail and service outlets including
cafes and bars, banks and convenience stores among others.
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SHANGRI-LAATTHEFORT

The Shangri-La at the Fort is the company’s luxurious hotel and
residential development ar the Bonifacio Global Ciy, offering a
mix of 576 hotel guest rooms, 97 hotel residences and 88 exclusive
Horizon Homes within the came ultra-prime oroperty.

Located at the corner of 5th Avenue and 30th Streer, i s
destined o become one of the country’s newesl landmarks. The
hotel-residential complex has & total GRA of 137453sgqm and an
estimated construction cost of Php 18 billion, making it one of the
mast expensive property developments in the Philipgines.

A5 of the end of December 2004, the sale of 12 Horizon Homes
units have been completed representing 12.2% of the tatal 58 units
available for sale. Revenuss were at Phpp 117 Gillion while 1o1al GRA
sold reached 3,976 sam out of the overall GFA of 33.606sgm.

Ore of Shangri-La at the Fort's unigue feature is an extensive sports )
club within the developrment. The club will have swimming pools,
an indaar sports hall, boxing, NBA standard baskethall facilities,
and tennis courls that are spread out in two large floors. Gther
amenities include the Adventure Zone for children and a spa that
will offer memizership programs.
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Arnisl’s Rendening

ONESHANGRI-LAPLACE

Cne Shangri-la Place is Shang Properties’ biggest completed
condominium praject to date, with a total development cost of
Fhp! | gillion, It wopped off in September 2003 and started twming
aver units to buyers during the 3rd quarter of 2014,

The fa-storey twin tower condominium sits atop the Shangri-La
Plaza’s East Wing at the Crtigas Center in Mandaluyong City and
has a total GFa of 110,284sqm and 1,304 residential units offered.

Gross revenues from One Shangri-La Flace as of end-2014 stoad
at Php116 hillion, with 1,177 units alieady sold or $16% of the
cornbired units from the Morth and South Towers. The project has
sabel 102,21 8sgm or 92.5% of the 1otal GRA available.

SHEA NG

PRUOFERTIES

Arnsrs Reagering

SHANG SALCEDO PLACE

The company’s second residential project in Makat City, Shang
Salcedo Place is a 67-storey luxuny developrment with a very limited
number of units - only 74% in total - that will define and become
the standard of true and exclusive luxury in SalcedoVillage.

Shang Salcedo Place has sold 346 units as of end 2014, or 46.2% of
its pvailatale inventory. Gross floor area sold reached 20,611 5950m
or 45.3% of 1he projects’total GRA of 45 521sqrm.

Tertal revenues fram Shang Salcedo Place stood at Php2 48 billion
as af December 31, 2014,

Amenities at Shang Salcedo Place include separate swimiming |
poals for children and adults, gy and exercise rooms, a childrars

play area and an cutdoor garden at the podium level.

Shang Saleedo Place is scheduled for completion in 2075,

2000






THE ENTERPRISE CENTER

The Enterprise Center faced big challenges in 2014 - the
expiration of some of its leases and the entry of new office
spaces in the Makat Central Business district. The company's
commitment toretaining its tenants prevailed and more than
0% of the expiring leases were renewed.

Al the same time, other remaining vacant spaces in the
building were taken up by new and existing tenants, resulting
in & 98% average accupancy rate and an average rental rate of
Fhpa?l per sguars meter by the end of the year.

A% a result, net income of The Enterprise Center grew 11%
fresm Phpa20 million in 2013 to Php&S0 million or an increase
of Pho?0 million.  Gross remal revenus also increased by
Phgd0 million to Php20s million, up 8% from the Phpg3r
rrnillicn in the previous year.

Tes restanry and maintain its existing tenants and 1o continue 1o
strengthen The Enterprise Center's position as the prestigious
business address of the Philippines’ op corparations, The

SHAMNG PROPERTIES
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Arkists Revelevings

Enterprise Conter embarked on a 2-year program o upgrade and
rencvate its existing facilities, amenities, and major equipmant. The
rencvation will also create additional office spaces for lease and
the upgrades will cover all common areas in the tenanted floors a3
well as the surrounding landscape, driveway and lobhbies, The food
court will also undergo a complete makegver,

1112014, The Enterprise Center also earned migjor distinctions during
the 16th Fire Safety Compliznce Awards given jointly by the Gty
of Makati, the Rotary Club of Makati, and the Makati Commercial
Estate Association for its safety and fAre prevention programs,
winning awards for Building Fire Safety, Fire Brigade, and Corporate
Fire Safery in the commerdial Building category,

| 2014
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SHANGRI-LA PLAZA

Stangn-La Plaza s undisputedly the countey’s most established
woscale shopping and lifestyle destination. Located in Shang
Place, an integrated communily buill on 86 hactares of land
ir thie bustling Griigas Cener commercial and fnandial distacr
r Mandaluvong City, it offars its customers & completa and
carelully szlected mix of superior good and services in well-
planned merchandise 2onss.

Encwen for 105 ploneering innovative retail concepts, Shangri-
Lo Plaza opened its East Wing in 2013 The new wing, which
searnlessly complernants the world class lifestyle experience
at the Main Wing, further boosted the signature Shang malling
experience Thus, in 2014, Shangri-Lz Plaza was recognized
angwe for its unparalleled retail power, having been adjudged
as the 2013 Shopping Center of the Year (Large Categany in
the Cutstanding Filiping Retailers and Shopping Centers of the
ear Awards, 3 jont effort of the Philipping Retailers Association
(PRAL and the Departrment of Trade and Industry (GT1).

Corrently, the Main Wing is under a major rencvation and redevalogment
program which is expected to be completed in 2015, Aimed at achieving
a urified Shangii-La Plaza, these ongoing improvemnents and uparading in
and argund the Main Wing will pave Lhe way for new retail concepts and

create additiongl sources of reverne and growth, )

Shangri-La Plaza’s more than one hundred thousand sgm of retail space iz
delightful and dynamic environment that evolves with its loyal customers,
Shopping at the 3hang is a taly enjoyalie and vibrant exparience, 2y
the mall itsel! is & pleasure 1o be in, featuring cutting-edge architecure,
spacious interiors, and a relaxing ambience. The mall's mare than 600
gstatlishrents not only provide vibrant and pleaserable shopping that
is a feast for the senses, i alio imbues this experience with Choide ewents,
performances and exhibits showeasing the country’s cultuee and art

Fil
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Board.

Edward Kuok Khoon Loong

is the Chairman of the Company and also ¥ice Chairman of Kerry
Holdings Limited. He has been with the Kuak Group since 1578,

Wales in the Llnll.‘ed K‘]ngdom ik _<'-. S e R _“__:_;.

Al fredo C Rdmas

is the Vice Chauman of the Campany HE' Is the Chairman
of the Board of Anglo Philipgine - Holdmgs Imc.,:

Inc. and Yulcan Materials Cmpcrﬂtmn He i the Chalrman

Stores Cnrp '_
is "Jlr_e Chal

Manuel M, Cosico

He has a Masters degree: in Economjcs Erom t“we Unp.rersuy of

is a Partner of Romule, Mabanta, Buenaventura, Sayoc & de los
Angeles Law Firm. He is Chairman of the Construction Industry

;Arbitra'tion Commission (CIAC) since 2011 and was a former
"_-Hrbltramr of CIAC from 2001 to 2011, He was previously the

Fressdmg- Judge of Branch 136 aof the Regicnal Trial Court of

af}-ﬁﬂkatl frerm 1986 101991 and a Special Criminal Court Judge

from 1986 10 1991, He was farmerly a Professor of Evidence,

: _(‘_'w:i Erocedurﬁ*, special Proceedings and Trial Technigues at the
.I'J\I'lk-ll--;'
fublishing, Inc., C:.rmen Canper Lurporatlan NES Express:_ o
7 Cj.'nthia Roxas Del Castillo

an-d Pres“;ient clr ,f-'-.l:las Cc:uns'ulidared r-.-'l.lmng Ee Elevelupment e
TR e _;|Sa F‘artnerat Rormule, Mabanta, Buenaventura, Sayoc & de

Ateneo de Manila University.

nd has been wﬁh the firm for over 30 years.
B an;n Ateneo, graduated Valedictorian in

1 -::I-_"I Hh In the 1976 Bar Examinations. She
curre__]*g serues 34 Comurate Secre{ar}r and: Director of

'.'__-_-DEher various F‘hlhpplne COrparations.

o Dc’zﬁﬂa Reginal. 'Fa;'as

;\the Brecutive ‘ice President and General Manager
; Shangn La Plaza Corporation. She is also a Director
"f_KSn Healt}f Corporatuon and The Enterprise Cenler
Eondomm:um Cmporarlon She is the first female
gﬁlduabe wttﬁ hanurs frr_nrn the Asian Instltute of




Ho Shut Kan

is the Co-Managing Director of Kerry Properties Limited [KPLL
He is responsible for oversesing the operations of the project
companies and the projects of KPL.in Hong Keng, Macau
and averssas. He is a non-sxecutive direcior of Eagle Asset
tanagement (CP) Limited and manager of Champion Real
Estate Irwestment Trust, which is listed in Hong Kong.

Koay Kean Choon
i the Senior Praject Dirsctor of the company. He worked as i &
E hanager with Kerry Project Management Lrd, Hong Kong and
as Senigr Project Manager for Shangri-La Hotel Managerment
Lrcd. from 2000 to 2011,

Woilkie Lee

is a Project Directar of Kerry Properies Ltd. He obtained his
Bachelors Degree in Civil Enginestring: from the University. .
of Saskatchewan, Canada and a Masters Degres jn Business

administration from the University of Notre Dame, UsA and the
Londan Business Schaol,

Maxime G. Licauce 11T

.Fe:ierimG Noel, jr,

s the General CDL.TIE-E| of the Company. He is also d‘u? Corporate
Secretary and Legal Counsel for the other Kuok Group campanies
Jin the Philippines including the Shangri- La Plaza Corparation

and tha Shangri-La Hotels. He graduated from the Ateneo Law
Schoolin 1991 with a Juris Doctor degree.

Benjamin I, Ramos

is the Presitrzﬁu of Powerbooks since 2009 and is the Soecial

“Assistant to the Wice President atNational Book Store. He has an
MBA from the Stanfard Graduate Schaol of Business.

Wilfred Shan Chen Woo

is the Executive Assistant 1o the Chairman of the Board, He .

is & member af the institute of Chartered Accountants of

'Bmmh Columbia and the Canadian Institute of Chartered
_'ﬁ-ccount.:sms since ‘|QEJ He: graduatef} in: 1982 from the
University afs Brlnsh tolumbla in Varicouver, Canada with

a Bachelor's Degre‘e in Commerce, majaring in Accounting
and Management Information Systems.

is the Director of the Philodrill Corporation:: He is also President. .

of Filstar Distributors Carporation (Hallmark Licensee) and Ares
Vice President of Mational Book Store, Ing.

Kinsun Andrew Ng

is the Group Financial Cantroller of the Company. He also
seryes as Director of the various boards of Shang Propetties
affiliates and subsidiaries, He is an associate;member of the
Hong Kong Sodiety of Accountantsiand g fellc_;nw
the Association. of Chaﬂered Eermuﬁd Acqo‘l.l Tants in tl
UK. He graduated from the. H-::mg Kang Stie Yan Univ Brsity
with a degree in. Acgaunting.=

member oE _



Shang Progerties, Inc and its Board of Directors have always
wecanized and effected the globally accepred three (3) basic
principles of corporate governance: fairmess, ransparency, and
accountanility o all its stakeholders, Shang Properties adopled iz
Corparate Governance Manual and submitted this to the Securities
ard Exchange Commission in 20032,

Tre following sections dermonstrate the Company’s compliance
with these principles 2s detailed in the Manual during the Anancial
vizar ending December 31, 2004

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

fhe Board is resporsible for the leadership and control of the
Compary and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic directions
and financial performance 1L sels and provides the rele modeling
for the Compary's values and standards ensuring further that it
oifigations to the Company's sharehalders are understood and
et To Lhis end, it assumes responsibility for strategy formulation,
governance, and  performance  monitaring,  The
mgragement is delegated the autharity and responsibility for the
adrministration of the Company within the control and authonily
framework set by the Board, In addition, the Board has also
delegated various responsibilities to the Executive Commitles, the
At Committes and the Mormination Cormmittee. Further details
of these commitiess are st out in this annual report.

Corporaie

The number of meetings keld and the attendance record of the
Roard membiers a1 these meetings for the last theee (3) vears are
as followes

2015% 2014 2013

Murmzer of Meetings 1 ] 2
mtnda neie -
_ Executive 100% 1003 Sl
- -In{jr:ﬂc‘nd £t Mon-Executive B0, o H&% 7L
verage = 87 7% 84k

“Meetings are neld in the year-te-date

Board minutes kept by the Corporate Secretary, are s2nt 1o the
Directars for records, and are cpen for inspection,

Board Composition

The Board is currently camposed of frve (5) Executive Directors and
ten (10) Mon-Frecutive Directors of which three (3 are Independent
Dlirectors

The Executive Directors are Messrs. Wilired Shan Chen Woe,
Federico G, Moegl Ir, Kinsun Andrew Mg, Koav Kean Choon and

wis, Danila Regina | Fojas, The Non-Executive Directors are Edward
Kugk Khoon Loong, alfrede O Ramos, Maximo G Licauco I,
Antonio O, Cojuangeo, Benjamin | Ramos, Cynthia Roxas del
Castille, danuel M. Cosica, Ha Shut Kan, Johnny O Cobarkial, and
Wilkie Lee. Msers. Cobankiar, Cojuangoo and Cosico were electad
Independent Cirectars. The biographies of the Directors are set
out on page 12 and 13 of this annual report, which demonstrate a
cliversity of skills, expertise, experience and gqualifcations,

Division af Responsibilities

The Board has appointed a Chairman who has  execulive
responsibilities and who provides leadership in establishing pohces
and business directions. The Chairman ensures that the Board
wirks elfectively, discharges s responsibilities, and discusses all
kew and appropriate 55025 in a tmely manner.

The Executive Directors are tasked with the day-to-day running
of the Company and are respansible for the different aspects of
Shang Properties' businesses

Mon-Executive Directors bring strong independent judgment,
knowledoe and experience 1o the Board's deliberations. Apart from
their appointments, the Non-Executive Directors do not have any
form of service contract with the Compary or any of its subsidiaries.

The Independent Directors take an active rele in Board meetings,
participate in Board Committees, contribule 1o the development of
strateqies and policies, and take the lead when ootential conflicts
of interest arise.

Directors’ Re-election and Removal
The Diectars of the Company are elected during the annual

general meeting and hold office for one {1} year and until their
successors are glecled and deemed gualified

14
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Access to fa formation

J Directars are conbrualy updated with legal and regulatory
davelopments, regularly receive comprehensive information about
Iosiness activities, inancial highlights and cperatiors review of
the Company's business and market changes, and developrments
s that they are up-to-date and are well-informed during Board
meslngs and 1o facilitate i discharging their responsibilities.
The Board mempers arg provided with Board papers and relevant
malerials pror 1o the infendad meeting date, including business
anct fnancial epons covering the Groups principal business
activities and are at liberty 1o Contact managemsant fgr enguiries
ard taabtain further infermation, when reguired. Al Directors hawe
urrestricted acoess to the advice and services of the Corporate
Secmetary, who enaures that they receive appropriate and tirmely
irformation for their decision-meaking and that Board procedures
are being followed. The Directors can obtain independent
crofessional advice at the Company's expenss,

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

Executive Comumities

The Executive Committee consists of five (5] members of the
Buoard. It meets eqularly and ogerates a3 o general managermnent
committee chaired by willred Shan Chen Woo, an Execulive
[hrector and Executiee Assistant 12 Lthe Chairman, The Executive
Cormmittee maets o discuss the corporate and development
strategies of the Company.

Momindtion Committes

Fursuant tooms Comporale Governance Manual, the Board created
& Mominaton Commities i August 2005 composed of three
12 ith al least ane (1) Independert Director of the
Cornpary. The comrmitles acts in an advisory Cagacity and makes
secarnmendations to the Board, It promulgates the guidealines or
coteria 1o govern the conduct of the nominations of the Direclors.
The same s properdy disclosed in the Company's information
slalement of & well @5 ary reporls that are suzmitied to the
Securities and Exchange Commission.

SilAaNG

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Board is mesponsible for the preparation of the financial
statemnents, which adopt generally accepted accounting standards
in the Philippines, ensuring aporopriate accounting nolicies hawe
been wsed and applied consistently, and reasonatle and prudent
judgrents and estimates have besn made. The auditing and
reporting on the financial staterments are the primary responsibility
af the external auditor whose "aoditors Report ™ to the sharehalders
is included in this annual report.

Towards Lthe end of the wear, the Board reviews the lnancl
projections of the grocp for the Anandial vear ending 31 Decemioer
on any given year. Tne Board has continued to adogt going
concern basis in peparing the fnancial staterments 1o ensure thas
ary material uncertainties relating o events or conditions that may
affect the Company's ability 1o manage effectively are met.

fnternal Controls

Tre Board is resporsible for maintzining an adeguate sysiermn of
internal controls and reviewing theis effectiveness. The system
of internal cantrol is designed o facilitate effective and efficient
operations, safeguard ity assets, and ensure thet the qualty of
imtermal and exlernal reporting comply with applicable laves and
regulations, In establishing internal controls, the Company has
Laken into consideration the nature and extent of the Comparnys
business, operational and financial  risks, the likelihcod  of
crystallization of such risks, and the costs of implementing 1he
relevant internal controls, Tnese interral controls are desigred o
rmanage, but not eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve busingss
objectives and provide reasanabls, but not absolute, assurance
against the risks of rmaterial risstaternent, frawd or Iosses

Curing the year anded 31 Decermnber 2014, the Board, through
the Audit Committee, eviewed 1he risks and evaluated the
internal contral framewaark that operates within the Camoany
and considersd that the system of intermal controls in operaticn
iz effective

Aore details on the Company's internal conteol framewaork and the
Board's process to evaluate its system ol internal conteols is set out
in the secticn headed internal contrels on page 16 of this annual
report,

15
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Audit Committer

Pursuant o its Corporate Governance hManual, the Board created
an Audil Committee in August 2002 currenily composed of
Independent Mon-Fxecutive Directors, Each member is required
to have 21 least an adequate understanding of or competence
on most of the Company's Anancial management systems and
erwirgnment.

Tre major respansitiities of the Audit Cormmittee are:

Iz check that all Ainancial reports comply with pertinent
accounting standards, including regulatory requirsments;
To perform owversight financial management functions
specifically in the areas of managing credit, market,
liguidity, onerational, legal and other risks of the Company,
and Crisis management;

T perform direct interface funcricns with the internal 2nd
external auditars;

lo elevate o intemational standards the accounting
and auditing processes, practices and methodolagies,
and 10 develop, amang others, & timetabla within which
the accounting system of the Company will be 100%
compliant with Intemational Accounting Standards.

To develop a tansparant Anancial management system
that will #nsure the integrity of internal control activilies
tioughout the Company  through a step-by-step
procedures and policies handbook that will be vsed by
the entire oroanization.

The number of meetings held and the attendance record of the
Committes members a1 thase meetings for the last three {37 years
are 25 follows:

2015 2014 2013

Fumber of Commiltae

gt 1 5 5
Westings

Arrenclance 100 6%

*“Meetings are held in Lthe year-to-date
Auditor's Remuneration

During the financial year ended 31 Decernber 2014, the fees paid /
pavable to the auditorin respect of the audit and non-audit services
provided by the external auditor to the Company amounted 1o
thipd S million,

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the
effectivensss of the Company's system of internal contiols. The
internal controls are designed to meel the Group's particular needs,
rnirirmize the risks towhich the Cormpany is exposed, manage rather
than elirminate the risks 1o achisve business objectives, and provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against misstaternents or
lossas, The Company's internal control framewaork covers (i) the
setting of objectives, budgets, and targets: (i) the establishment of
reqular reporting of financial information, in paricular, the Tacking
of deviations between actual performances and budgets/agers,
(iii) the delegation of authority; and (iv) the establishment af clear
lines of accountability,

Sirategies and objectives of the Company as awhole are determined
by the Board, Budgers are prepared annually end reviewed by
the Board. In implementing these sirategies and achieving these
objectives, each Executive Director has specific responsibilities
far monitoring the conduct and operations of individual Business
units within the Cormpary. This includes the review and approval
of business strategies and plans, the setting of business-related
performance targets as well as the design and implementation of
internal controls,

Periadic inancial information is provided 1o the Executive Directors.
Variance analysis between actual performances and targets are
prepared and documented for discussion at Board mestings,
with explanations noted for any material variances and deviations
betwesn actual performances and budgets / targets, This helps
the Bosrd and the Cormpany’s Managament (o monitor the Group’s
business operations and to plan on & prudent and timely basis,
Other regular and ad hod reports are prepared for the Board and its
various committess, 1o ensure that the Directors are provided with
all the requested information in a timely and appropriate manner,

To aliow for delegation of authority as well as to enhance
segregation of duties and accountability, & clear arganizaticnal
sructure exists detailing different levels of authority and control
responsibilities within each business unit of the Company. Certain
specific matters are reserved for the Goard's decision and cannol
be delegated. Thess includs, among others, the approval of anoual
and interim results, annual budgets, capital structure, declaration of
dividends, material acquisitions, disposals and capital expenditures,
Foard structure and its composition and suocession,

I addition, the Board alse monitors its internal controls through
a program of internal audits. The internal audit team reviews the
major operational, financial and risk managemant conir ol of the
Company on & continuing basis, and aims (o cover all its major
operations on a rotational basis, The scope af review and the audit

14
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prezprarn of the interral audit team, formulated and based on a risk
assessrment anproach, with focus on areas with relatively higher
percoiven risks, are approsed by the Audit Cormmittes 21 the end
of the praceding Anancial vear in conjunction with e Company's
oo miaranement, Dudng its visits, the internal audil 1eam also
ermres that spproprigte contrals are in place and dehcencies or
il anines Gf amyd are rectified,

Theinternal audic function reports directly 1o the Audit Comimittes,
scordingly, reqular intermal audit reparts ane circulated 1o the
sudic Committee members, the Chief Financial Ofhoen, and the
cutornal auditors for eview in accordance with 1he sporoved
internal audit program.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
Inuestor Relations
Communication Channels

v order Lo develop and maintain @ conlinuing  investors
ielationship program with its shareholders, the Company has
extablished various chanrels of communication:

i1 Shareholders can raise any cormmaents on the performance
and future directions of the Campany with the Directors
at the annual general meeting.

results

The Cormmgany  distributes  the  annual

shareholders,

jla]

Thie  Compenys owebsile wwwshangoroperties.
COMo Containg  important  Corporate  information,
tographical details of Directars and senicr managemert,
crgamzationzl structure, annual and interion reports,
major mestorical developments with comprehensive and
user-friendly information about the Company, as well as
announcements and circulars issued by the Comparny
in arder 1o enable the Company's shareholders and the
iréestor corumunity 1o have timely acoess to updated
information.

Snarcholders and members of the investar cormmunily
are welcome 1o raise enguiries through the Legal
Department, whaose contact details are available in the
Compery's webisite www shangproperies.com

SHANG PROPERTILES
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General Meetings

-]

The general meeting provides 2 forum for the Board 10
communicate with the sharsholders of the Company.

Tofaciitate enforcement of shareholdars rights, significans
mnues are dealt with undar separate resalutions al gereral
mieetings.

Tre 3013 Annual Stecknolders’ Mesting of the Camgarny
wias held on 24 lune 2014 al the Garden Ballroorm, Edsa
Shangri-La, Oretigas Center, Mandaluyong City. The
following resolutions were passed during the meating:

1. To adept the audited Anancial staterents and
the report of the directors and the audiors Tor the
firancial year ended 31 Decemier 20013 -

2. To ratify the acts of the Board of Directors and
the Management since the annual meeting of
stockholders held on 26 June 2013,

3. Toelectthe members of the Board of Directors for the
year 2014-2015, namely: Edweard Kok Khoon Loong,
Allreda O Ramos, Wilfred Shan Chen Woo, Federico
G, Moel e, Kinsun Andrew Mg, Boae Kean Choor,
Darila Regina 1. Fojas, lohnry O, Coberkiat, Antonic
O, Cojuangeo, Manuel 8. Cosico, Cynihia Roxes del
Castilla, Hlg Shut Kan, Wilkie Lee, Maximo G, Licauco
I, and Benjarnin L Ramos.

4, To re-appoint 5GY as external auditors for Lthe yvear
2014-3015,

2014
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_BHP Millions:

TLlrnﬂ ver

" Proﬁt attributable to share halders iPhp M 201 L 36105
Sharaholders equity  (hpmy i e
Earnings pe.;;h-a;e e Caan _d ( P_hp_t_:;_u; A 36.1%.
Net asset value per share - 3 : {Php‘,l : 5 4,564 a6t
Share price at }T-E_El_l‘_ﬁ-n_ﬂ_ . g ____[F‘_hp]_ : : 32_?6 =i .;]gaf,
R —— T iratoy 7.742  5a%
mMarkst c.ap'ltaliza‘tion at *,re:ar end 3 : (Php M) 15578 345,
Div‘:dena ;EL ;‘r;ére [Php L‘.w] B L 2_? ?%
[:.!‘-Wlder-'l.-d pa}rmut ratio > : e - 260% 53 -2.5%
DI'..I'II-I;IIE;'l-i ylEid at year end i3 _ A% _E_CIE‘}?;
Dperatmg Margin e A 47.0% : 21.6%
Return on equ:ty-_ . ; HE 5.3% - 2‘3.{“:%
H;:urn on total finan ci‘ng ; A : : {%; 86% DE:%_
Interest cover : 2 “(Ratio} {3 17514 B Q205
Gross interest tasa % of totals bﬂrruwm gswj Rk e o B CiEage 0 495w
L rrent ratm ; e ; [Ratm; : g o 21 ]
Total DebttoEquity Tids% 0 anew

. Total Bank Leans o Equuty Gl B 22.7% S 124.7%

Turnover Earnings Net Assets Value Profit Attributable
BHE Millions ¢ -_-I_.‘:Per Share iaPer Share “ o Shareholders
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STOCK BEHAVIOR: QUARTERLY SHARE PRICE

For the past three (3] years, the Campany's share prices have traded as follows:

. HIGH  low.
~ - (in'Php}: {in Php) 2 (inPhp}. (inPhp)

"HIGH . Low

2 (inPhp). (inPhp

First Quarter’

Second Quarter
Third _QIUIETEE_I‘;/- .

Fourth Quarter

STOCK PERFORMANCE

Dividends

For the vear 2074, 1he Board of Directars declared rotal cash dividends of Phpi43 Million (201 3:Php524 Million)
Shareholder Profile

feof 31 Decembier 2014, the Company had 5457 stockiclders. Commen shares ouistanding as of said date are 4,764.058982. The
Company's stockhalders caning at least 5% or more of the commaon shares outstanding as of 31 December 2074 are;

Shareholders =~ - S ~ No. of Shares - | Percentage

ST company s weholly owred subsiciane of Kery Progernes Limited

k9
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Ten Year Financial Summary

T e e gl T
2013 s restated
| Profit and loss account — Php 000 | Php ‘000 P_hp CIO_I:II__ ____:
Turnaver ) 7,612,188 6,908,465 |  5406,229
Operating profit g ) ) 4,351,455 ._33',_'2:;_5’;45]_56__ _ A574363 |
Interest expense & bank charges — (227.066) (184,962) {172,280}
Share in profit (loss) of associated companies (9,693) (4.674) 28491 | -
Profit before taxation | 41469 3054530 | 2431575 |
Taxation (995,502) (751.430) (536,193) | -
Profit after taxation - |7 3ateae4 | 2303100 1895382 |
Minority interests (383.818) (291,827 | (248,905) 3
I_I__n-g::_:.me.-"tlr:n;s%‘.l ] = ] | e S T, ]
Profit attributable to shareholders 2,735,376 2011273 1,646,477 3
Assets and liabilities . - i -
| Fixed assets 38,389,161 | 27,295,207 25,506,150 B
Associated company 410,790 2441310 2514445
DOther assets B 68,494 37,286 42955
Net current assets/(liabilities) o 9,342,797 5257295 | 4,563,719
_ ) 48,211,242 | 35,031,099 32627270 |
Long term habilities (20,695,779) | (10,240,207) (9,474,933) |
Total equity 27,514462 | 24,790,791 23,152,328 |

20
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asrestated
1 enpiono Php 000 Php 000 Php’000 Php ‘000 Php 000 Php’000 |
- 3,589,163 2,797,513 4,030,408 3,781,157 | 3,108,922 1,587,373 1,669,145
2,070,157 1,865,515 2,137,487 | 1,805,348 1,220,915 474036 569,277 |
213337 (261,892) (313,261) (298,744) (54,125) (50,542) (58,285)
1 19,967 84,238 (2,724) 4672 127,695 62,370 77,740
____ | 1876787 | 1687860 | 1821502 1,611,276 1,294485 | 485,864 588,733 |
= (514,785) (402,266) (319,475) | (509,645) {306,520) 152,753 206,760
|
1362002 | 1285594 | 1502027 | 1,101,631 987.965| 638617 | 795493
| (305,286) (284,891) (330,539) (221,831)_ (43,369) | (30,675) (23,964)
] - B . ] 944,596 607,942 771,520 |
"""" | 1056716 1,000,703 1,171,489 879,801 | 944,59 607,942 771,529
B 24961947 | 24,217,513 | 24068278 | 24,500,533 16,677,884 | 14,757,807 | 14,813,853
| 2as0863 1,834,046 1,742,446 1,736,745 1,537,670 1,335,602 1,567,231
20575 | 417,677 418,724 403,873 36804 9,073 7,458 |
4061180 | 4897750 4,171,218 3,376,368 3268579 | 2,889,756 | 2,367,893
| 31533564 | 31366986 | 30400666 | 30,017,520 | 21,520,938 | 18992237 | 18756435
(9743,185) | (9915737) | (9,683477)| (10353073) | (47604400 |  (4294957)|  [4:499.252)
] 21790379 | 21,451,248 | 20717,189 | 19,664,446 | 16760498 |  14697,280|  14257,183
21
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Statement of Management's Responsibility

for the Financial Statements

March 27, 2015

Ty the Securities and Exchange Cammission
SEC Building, EOSA, Greenhills
City af Mandaluyeng, Metro Manila

The management of Shang Properties, Inc. is responsible for the preparation and falr presentation of the
consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, including the additional components attached
therein, in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, This responsibility includes designing and
implementing internal contrels relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and applying aporoprate
accounting palicies, and making accounting estimates that are reasanable in the circumstances,

The Board of Directors reviews and aporoves the consalidated financial statements and submits the same to the
stockholders,

Sylin Gorres Velavo & Co., the independent auditors, appointed by the stockhelders have examined the consolidated
financial staterments of the Company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its repart to the
stockholders, have expressed thair opinion an the fairness of presentation upon completion of such examination.

Sigred under oath of by the folleaing:

dward Kuok
Chairman al the Board

Jﬁwff

'|.|'|.L-'| red Woo
Executive Assistant to the Chairman
-
s
gﬁ{f‘;}’g i
Yice-President - Group Financial Contrallers Acting Chief Financial Cfficer

i)
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Audit Committee Report

The Audit Committee of The Board has been established since
2007 is composed of three (3) Directors, one (1} Executive
and two (2] Non-executive Directors, of whom 2 {two) are
independent directors and with audit experience, The chair of
the Audit Committee is an independent directar.

The Audit Committee operales pursuant to the approved
Audit Committee Charter, In general, the Audit Committes
is responsible for assisting the Board in its responsibilities in
moenitoring the integrity of the Group's financial reporting
process, the financial statements and reports of the Company,
the compliznce with legal and regulatory requirements,
the external auditors qualifications and independence, and
the performance of the Group's internal audit function and
external auditor,

In perfarming its responsibilities, set out below s a summary
of the work performed by the Audit Committee during the
financial year ended 31 December 2014,

i The Audit Committes reviewed the draft annual and
interim financial statements and the draft results
announcements of the Company, focusing on main
areas of judgment, consistency of and changes in
accounting palicies and adequacy of information
disclosure prior to recommending them to the
Board for approval.

The Audit Commitlee reviewed, in conjunction
with the external auditor, the developments of
accounting standards and assessed their potential
impacts on the Group's financial statements.

The Audit Committee assessed the independence
of the Campany's external auditer, prior te formally
engaging the external auditor to carry out the audit
for the Company's financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2074,

Prigr to the actual commencement of the audit, the
aydit Committes discussed the proposed scope of
work and approach of the audit with the external
auditor, Upon completion of the audit, the Audit
Committee reviewed the results of the external
audit, and discussed with the external auditar on
any significant findings and audit issues.

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board
regarding the appointment and remuneration of
the external auditor,

The Audit Commitiee reviewed and approved the
internal audit program, reviewed the internal audit
reports and discussed any significant issues with
the internal audit team and the Groups senicr
management,

{ii)

fiii)

il

)

(wil

2

SIPANG

3
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iwii)  The Audit Committee reviewed the independence of
the internal audit function and the level of support
and co-operation given by the Group’s management
to the internal audit team, as well as the resources of
the internal audit team when undertaking its duties
and responsibilities,

The fudit Committes reviewsd the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Groups systems of internal
cantrols, through a review if the work undertaken
by the Group's internal and external auditar, written
representations by the senior management of each
of the Group's business divisions and discussions
with the Board.

The Audit Committes evaluated the sufficiency and
effectiveness of the risk management processes and
fraud prevention through a review of the company's
Enterprise  Risk Management and the Whistle
Blowing Policy.

[wiii)

{ix)

During the financial year ended 31 December 2074, the Aucdlit
Commitlee met three times and the Audit Committee also
conducted meetings with the Groups senior management,
the external auditer and the internal audit team from time
to time, hinutes of the Audit Committes Mestings are
documented and circulated to the Board for information, The
Audit Committes also reports and presents its hndings and
makes recommendations for consideration and discussion at
Board meetings.

The Audit Committes reviewed the fnancial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 prior to
recormmending them to the Board for approval,

Members of the Audit Committee;

MR. JOHNNY |. COBANKIAT
Chairman

MR. ALFREDO C. RAMOS
Member

MR, MANUEL M. COSIC0O
Member

207
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weorking world

The Stockholders and the Board of Dinectors
Shang Properties, [nc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Shang Properties, Inc. and Subsidiarics, which compnse the
consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 20 1dand 2012, and the consolidated staternents of comprehensive
income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash Aows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,2014,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other cxplanatory infarmation,

Manapement's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Menagement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial stalemenls in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control a5 management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether dve to fraud or errar.

Auditors” Responsibility

Chur responsibility is 1o express an apinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audils
in accerdance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with cthical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the consclidated Anancial statements are free from material
ITHESTATEMENT

An audit invalves performing procedures to obtain awdit evidence about the amounts and disclesures in the congolidated financial
statements, The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment. including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemnal
controd relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order 1o design awdit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but nat for the purpose of expressing an opinion an the effectivencss of the entity's
internal control. Az audit also ineludes evalualing the appropriateness of sceounting palicies used and the reasonableness of accounling
estimates made by mapagement, as well as evaluating the oversll presentation of the conselidated finzncial statements. We believe that
the mudit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropeiate o provide a basis for our audit opinion,

Opinien
Ln our apinion. the consolidated financial statements present fairdy, in all material respects, the financial position of Shang Praperties,

Ine. and Subsidiaries as 5t December 31, 2014 and 2013, and their fnancial performance znd their cash fows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2014 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

(it o 2 %
Arnel F. De Jesus
Partner

CPa Certilicate Mo, 435285

SEC Acereditation Mo, DOT73-4R-3 (Group A),
Febreary 14, 2013, valid until February 13, 2016
Tax ldenfication Mo. | 52-884-383

BIR Accreditation Mo, 08-00 1998-15-2012,
June 19,2012, valid until June 18, 2015

BT Mo, 4751272, Janvary 5, 2015, Makat City

March 27, 2015
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SHANG PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

December 31

2004 2013
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cazh and cash equivalents (Mote 5) R2.O11,004,820 Bl 891 446,943
Financial asscts ot fair value through profit or loss (Mote 6) 33,012,524 30348, 704
Receivables (Motes 7 and 31) 4,162,249.384 3,334 271,525
Properties held for sale (Mote &) 5,773,117.694 2,443 509 795
Prepayvments and other current asscts (Mots %) 1,505,192,006 497 650 234
Total Current Asscts 14,6834.576,428 5,397,236,203
Moncurrent Assets
[nvestments in associaies (Mote 10) 410,790,224 2441310290
[nvestiment propertics (Note 133 27110867 488 26,743 225 950
Real estale development projects (MNote 14) 11,211,283,922 454 BES 5RT
Available-Tor-sale financial assets (Mote 13) 202,822,842 502322 342
Property and equipment (Note 16} 67,009,417 67,093,620
Crocebwill (MNetes 2 and 17} 2659 870504 :
Felundable deposits 08,493,754 37280, 10%
Deforred meome Lox assels - nel (Mole 29) 356,407,946 3710 483
Total Noncurrent Asscls 30,997,546,462 30648082941
TOTAL ASSETS PS4,682, 122,890  #39045.319,144

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Laabilities
Agvounts pavable and other current liabilities (Motes 18 and 31)
Current perlicn of

P4.883.213,157

B2.651 001467

Bank loans (Nole 19) 583,333,333 G706 19,048

Creposits lrom tenants (MNote 20) 484,423,000 G160, 747. 724

Delerred lease income (MNote 200 14,163,625 2R 028512
Dividends pavable (Mote 22) 104,294,980 20,844 007
Income tax pavable 127,582,324 449379716
Total Current Liabilitics 6,200,010,419 4,014,220 474
Moncurrent Linbilitics
Accrued emplovee benefits (Mote 27) 68,302,035 40,235,076
Bank loans - nel of current portion {(Mote [9) 11,565,335,572 4 205 B33 533
Deposil for fulure stock subscription (Note 12) 1,939, 00030000 -
Deferred income Lax liabilitics - nel (Mote 29) 6,589 901,691 5500, 56{,988
Deposits (Tom tenants - net of current portion (Note 20) 494,021,217 338 (66,025
Deferred lease income - net of cwrrent pertion (Mote 20) 20,018,732 03,591 879
Taotal Noncurrent Liabilitics 201,646,779, 247 10, 240,307,301
Total Lighilitics 26,897,7809.066 14,254, 527,773

{ Forward)

pE
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December 31

2014 2013
EQUITY
Equity atlributable 1o equity holders of the Parent Company:
Capital stock (Note 21) P4T64.058982  P4.764,058.982
Additional patd-in capital 534,439,607 B34 439 607
Treasury shares (Note 21) (6,850,004) (0 B30 004
Relaingd earnings (MNotes 21 and 22 15,234,935,332 Lo, 142 418,632
____Other components of cquity (Motes 15 and 27) (8,046,511) 3427064
23,818,537,346 21,734 409 921
Equity atlributable 10 non-controlling interests (Note 1) 3,965,795 878 30563581 448

Total Equity

27.784,333,224

24,790,791 369

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

B54,682,122,8090

P39, 043 319,144

See pocompaming Notes to Consolidated Fivancial Siatementy,

SHANG
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SIEAMG PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Years Ended December 31

2014 013 2012
REVENUES
Condominium sales B3, 704277803 P2 U35 170504 B2 098045454
Femal 2,624 893,646 2338490, 151 L 848769513
Cinen 6,367,560 56448809 53,000,582
6,440,539 099 6,330,009 264 4,599 9035 544
COST AND EXPENSES
Cost ol condominium sales (Note 24) 2,442444,122 2,991,004 104 2.224 877900
ST costs (Mote 26) 205,539,144 241330108 221,058 534
Taxnes and licenses (Note 25) 205,446,842 145063414 144,573,177
Creneral and administrative (Note 25) 193,324,687 156,933 328 2001,934.178
Unreimbursed share in common ¢xpenscs (Nole 28) 85943421 96,042 Bolh 1051860
Deprecistion and amortization (Mate 1G] 20,414,157 15,177,996 16,589 5001
Insurance 17620267 15681448 11,780,337
3,260,732 640 3,604,299 258 2831865707
OTHER INCOME (CHARGES)
Interest {MNote 23) 260,361,020 279420867 284,513,613
Gains on;
Remeasurement arising [rom business
combinations (Mote 12) 824,431,141 - -
Reversal of impainment loss on real estate
clevelopment project (MNowe 14) - LEL 9546497 -
Fair vabng adjustment ol investment
properties (MNole L3) = - 400, 126,054
Fareign cxchange gains (losses) - net §80,730 L081,797 (2.871.943)
Oibers - net (Mote 23) 67,975,685 112,392,231 124, 555,744
1,162,648 5835 577,855,592 B06.323.408
SHARE IN NET EARNINGS (LOSSES) OF
ASSOCIATES (Mote 10) {9,692,903) (4674070 29 440,674
INTEREST EXPENSE AND BANK CHARGES
(Mote 23) 227,066,344 154,961,863 172279478
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 4, 114,695,797 3,034,529.0650 2431574508
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (MNote 29} 995,501,734 751,429,724 336,192,511
NET INCOME 3,119,194 )58 2,303 099932 1,895 381 005
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCONME (LOSS)
ltewns that may be reclassified to profit or loss:
Clhange in Tair value of available-for-sale
fimgngial assels, nel of tax effect (Note 13) 330,000 210,000 IO
Transkation adjustments 17,554 356,540 (413850
Ttems (st will not be reclassiflied 1o profit or loss:
Remeasurcment gains (losses) on defingd
benefit liability, net of tax elfect {(Mole 27} (8,756,529 23,248,584 {25, 5537 602)
(9.389,275) 24.015,1249 (25,106,432
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME B3, 110,804,753 P2.327,115006] P1ETO 185543

{Forvad)

SHAMG PROFPERTIES
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Yeurs Ended Doecember 31

1014 2013 2012
Net income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company B2,735375946 B1011,27204] P40 ATT037
Mov-controlling interests 383818112 291,827,291 248,904 938
B3,119.194,058 B2 303099932 PLAYS 381 995
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Comparny B2,726.986,471 E2033 287770 Bl.G21 280585
Mon-controlling interests 383,818,112 201 827.129] 248,004 958
e B3,110,804,783  B2L327.105061  B1.870,185.543
BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS
PER SHARE (Mowe 300
Bascd on net income R0.574 Bl),422 PO 346
Based on tolal comprehensive income B0.573 B0.427 B0}, 3400

S pecompEandnie Notes o Corsolidated Finomeial Seetennents,

28
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SHAMG PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 iz
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
[ncome before income ax B4, 114,095,797 B3 054 5290560 B2 ATLAT4.500
Adjustments lor:
Inlerest incowne (MNole 233 (269,361,020 (279.426,867) {284.503.613)
Inlerest expense (MNote 23) 225,860,264 184,388,227 164,926, 5735
Losses (gaing) o
Remessurement arising from business
combinations (MNole 12) (824,431,141 - -
Eeversal of inpairment loss on real cstate
development project (Mote 14) N (18 1,954,697)
Disposal of investment in associale
{MNote 23) - (17438767 -
Sale of property and equipment (Note 233 - (216.983) (163.535)
Fair value adjustment of investmant
propertics (Mole 13) - - (b}, 1 246,054
Derceognition of long-oulstanding
liabilitics (Note 23) - - (8.836,466)
Dreprecialion and amaortization {Note 16) 0,414,157 18,177,995 16,589,501
Drividend ingome (Note 233 (15,234,198) {18 823 456) (54685511
Share 1 net losses (profils) of associales
(Mol 10y Q692,003 4oa7d o7 (20 490.674)
Adpustment of loancial asscts a1 fair value
through profit or loss (Note 23) (2563,520) 1,926,992 4936 110)
Provvision for Bad detds (Mole 253 952,363 - 1 L426470
Unrealized forgign exchange losses (gaing) - net {880,730) (3,525,257 2,272,111
Operating income belore working capital changes 3. 250,074,566 2762311023 1,844,027 200
Diecrease (Increase) in
Receivables {390,351,260% (1.940.033,659) 315760, 540
Prapertics held lor sale (2.844,722,312) O, 915,620 (AIOAT,220)
Beal estate development project - (21890467 &
Prepayments and olher currenl assets [(469.044,442) (A0 082 81T 42048224
Increase (decronse) in:
Accounls pavable and other current liabilitics 1,803.034,003 898,743,103 (3549 7047900
Deferred lease income (56,038,034 16,499,217 10,852,673
Acerned employves benefils 15,762,280 {230, T806) 4089701
Cash peneraied from operations 1,318.314,5861 2.373.231,240 IS 306412
Incone taxes paid (T45809.225) (607, 1 38,948) {456,279 640)
{merest received 32,141 486 31,388,700 47843,192
Mel cush provided by operaling aclivilies 604,557,122 2017481998 (09, 869, 954

(Forwandy
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Yrears Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES
Additons o

Invesiment properbies (Mote 13) (B3I67.641,538) (P15SE9435.5910) (BL33.500, 1700

Property and equipment (Mo 16) {17,541,185) { 14,766,250 (27.787.691)

Iwestmgnt 1o associale MNote 10 (15,000,000} 6, 100, D0 (A0U2 23
Proceeds from sale of:

Property and equipmcnt - 367,171 2549 600

[evestment in asseciate (Nole 100 - 42, 00,000 -
Dividends regcived 15,234,198 18,323,450 36933511
Agopesilion of a subsidiary,

nel of eash acquired (Mot 12) {1 A465,(48.452) - -
[ecrease in renl estale development projects 284 877,078 : .
Decrease (ncrease) in refundable deposits (15,931,785 5,608 534 (13,380 985}

Mel cash used in investing aclivilices

{1,581,051,724)

(1493241675

(123,895,953}

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Froceads from loan availment,

nit of debt issoe cosls (Note 19) 3754336434 L 400 000,000 1004 00D KR
Pavments of;

Loun principal {Mole 19) (64 7,619,048) (52 9R0,U57) (A0EIE5 71

Iercsl {Mote L9 { LR, SH4 4400 CIEZ1RL047) (104423 225
Cash dividenrds paid 1o

Siockhelders {559,408,273) (520.922.329) {38,259, 760

Mon-courolling sharchclders of subsidianes {376,500,000% {164, 250,000 { 117,750,000
Increase (decrense) in deposils from tenants {6.593,55T) 183,105,842 158,338,213
el cash provided by (used in) financing activitics 1,%95,331,116 {237 828, 486) (319.080.483)
NET EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE

CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH

EOQUIVALENTS (MNote 5) 721,363 401,797 (2687.961)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS 19557877 PALIE DERVER) L6, 205 567
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,891 446,943 1600053 30y 1.436,747.742
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

END OF YEAR B2.0711.004,820 BLR9] 446,043 B1,600 5953 304
Sev pooanpanding Motes i Caresolidarsd Finametal Sfatentenis,
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SHANG PROPERTIES, IMNC, AMD SUBSITHARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

I, Corporate Information and Authorization for [ssue of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Corporate Information

Shang Propertics, Inc. (the Parent Company), a corporation duly organized and existing in the
Fhilippines. was incorporated and registered  with the Philippine Sccuritics and  Exchange
Commission (SECY on Qotober 21, 1987 to acquire, own, develop, subdivide, sell, mortgage.
exchange. lease or hold for investment, real cstare of all kinds.

The Parent Company’s regstered office address, which 15 also s principal place of business, is
Administration Office, Shangr-La Plaza Mall, EDSA comer Shaw Boulevard, Mandaluyong City.

The Parent Company’s and Subsidiarics” {colleetively referred to as the Group) businesscs include
property investment and development, real estate managemaent, leasing, mall and carpark oporations.

Shang Properlies Bealty Corporation {SPRC, a wholly owned subsidiacy) 15 the developer of The
Shang Grand Tower Project (TSGT). located m Makati City, The St Francis Shangri-la Place
Project (TSFSP) and the Gne Shangri-La Place Project (OSP), both located 1o Mandaluyong City,

Shang Property Developers, Ing (SPDI, a wholly owned subsidiary) is the develaper of Shang
Saleedo Place Project (S5PY. located in Makati f_‘.i{:.'_

Acquisition of 0% Fquine Taerest in Shang Global Clty Properties, Ine (SGCPL) and Fort
Bowifoew Shargei-lo Hotel, Ine. (FRSHT) from a Thivd Party

On April 30, 2014, the Parent Company, through its whelly owned subsidiarics, Shang Global Ciev
Holdings. ne. (SGCHI) and Shang Fort Bonifacio Holdings, Ine. (SFEHIY, acquired additional 20%
mrgrest i SCCPEand FBSHI respedively, which were owned by a third parly for a purchase price
of 81700000000 Prior to the acquisition, the Group owned 40% cquity interest m SGCP] and
FBSHL On December 17, 2004, the SEC approved the merger of SGCPI and FBSHI, with SGCPI
as the surviving entity {see Mote 12).

Incarparation of The Rise Developmeni Company, ine. (FRDCH)

In 2013, the Board of KEC approved the redevelopment of 1ts real estate project (see Mote 14). As
such, on April 22, 2014, The Rise Development Company, Inc. (TRDCI) was incorporated and
reaistered with the SEC. On the same date, KRC tansferred its contractual obligations in The Rise
Project located in Makati City o TRDCL As of December 21, 20104, the project s 1.88% completad.

Authorization for [zsue of the Consolidated Financial Statements
The consolidated finaneial statements have been approved and authorized for issue m accordance
with a resclution of the Board of Dircetors (the Board) on March 27, 20105,

2. Summary of Sianificant Accounting and Finaneial Reporting Policies

Basiz of Prepamtion

The consalidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis, cxeept for
wrvestment propertics, Anancial assets at faie valus throngh profit or loss (FYPL) and available-for-
sale (AFS) fnancial assets that have been measured at fair value. The consolidated financial
statements of the Group are presented in Philippine Peso (Peso), which is the Parent Company’s
functional and presentation currency, with ameunts reunded to the nearest Peso,
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Statement of Compliance

The consohdated finanaal statements bave been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reporung Suandards (PTRES) as issued by the Financial BEepornting Standards Council (FRSC).

Basiz of Consolidation

The consolidated Anancial statements comprise the fimancial statements of the Parent Company and
all of its subaidiaries as at December 31, 2014 and 20013 and for each of the three vears in the period
ended December 31, 2014,

Subsidiarics are entities over which the Group has control. Contral is achieved when the Group is
esposed, or has rights, to variable returns from s invelvement with the subsidiary and has the ability
to affect those retums through its power over the subsidiary. Specifically, the Group contrals the
subsidiary if and only 1f the Group has:

= Power over the subsidiary (.o, existing righes that give it the current ability to direct the relevane
activities of the subaidiary),

*  Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the subsidiary, and

*  The ability to use its power over the subsidiary to affect its returns.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

*  The contractual armngement with the other vote holders of the investee,
= Rights ansing from other contractual arrmngements, and
*  The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances ndicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of contrel. Consolidation of a subsidiary
beging when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary,  Asscls, babilites, income and cxpenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the vear are inchaded in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from the date
the Group sains conteal onti] the date the Group ceases o conteal the subsidiary.

A change in the ovwnership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, 18 accounted for as an
cquily transaction.  If the Group loses contrel over a subsidiary, it

*  Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary.

= Derceognizes the carrving amount of any NCTL

s Derceognizes the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity,

*  Recoonizes the fair value of the consideration received.

*  Reconnizes the fair value of any investment retained,

= Recopnizes any swiplus or deficit in profit or loss.

*  Reclassifies the parent’s sharg of components previously recognised in OCI to profil or loss or
retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly dispesed of the
relatod assels or habilines.
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Profit or loss and cach component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the equity holders
of the Parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, ¢ven if this results in the MCI having
a defieit balance. When necessary, adjostments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries
1o align their accounting policies with the Group’s aceounting policics.  All intra-group assoets and
liahbilities, cquity. income, cxpenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are climinated in full on consolidation.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Parent
Company, using consistent accounting policics.

The tollowing are the subsidiaries for which the Parent Company acts as the prinapal decisian
maker:

Effective Percentapes of Ownership

L 2014 23

Property Development:

SPRC 100, 00" 100 00%

aPDl THLO0% 100 00

TR (Mate Ld) 100.00%% =

SGCPL (Mote 12) 60.00%, Rl
Leasing:

SPS1 100.00% 100,00

SLPC 100.00%% 100 D

KEA 52.90% 32.00%
Fieal Estate

1P 100" 16063 00

KR 100004 100 00

MBPI 10L00%, 10000

MCRIL 100.00% 106, 11

PS5l L0000 108 001

SFEHI T (R 004 100, 0%

SGOHI T, 00% 1008, 00
Property Management:

KMSC 100.00% 160000

SPMEL 100, 00% 140, 005
Others;

Chpsey (BYI Company) JLLRE T 100 005

SHIL (BVT Company) 100005 LI CR00

ELHI &0 00% G000

Fr 20013, the Growp accounted for it nterest in SGOP oy imvestment in assaciate.

Exeept for Gipsey and SHIL, which were incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, all the other
subsidiaries were incorporated in the Philippines.

Changes in Accounting Policies

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial vear, exeept for
the lollowms new, amended and improvements to PFRS, Fhilippine Accounting Standards (PAS)
and Fhilippine loterpretations from International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committec
(TFRICY which the Group has adopted during the year. However, they do not impact the
consolidated financial statements of the Group, uoless otherwize stated below,
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lirvestment Entities { Amendments to PFRS 10, Convolidared Financial Statements, PERS 12,
Disetosure of Inferests in Other Eniities, and PAS 27, Separale Financial Statements)

These amendments provide an exception to the consolidation requirement for entitics that mect
the definition of an mvestment entity under PFRS 10, The exception to consolidation requires
investment entities to account for subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss.  The
amendments must be applied retrospectively, subject to certain transition relief,

PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Licthifities { Amendments)

These amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has @ legally enforceable night to set-oft”
and the criteria for non-simultaneous settlement mechanisms of clearing houses to qualify for
olfsetting and are applied retrospectively.

PAS 30, Financial Inscrumenis: Recognition and Meastrement - Novaiion of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting (Amendments)

These amendments provide relicf from discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of a
derivative designated as a hedging instrument meets certain criteria and retrospective application
I5 reguired

PAS 36, hapirment of Assets - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assels

{ Amendments)

These amendments remove the unintended consequences of PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement,
on the disclosures required under PAS 36, [n addition, these amendments require disclosure of
the recoverable amounts for assets or cash-generaling units (CGUs) for which impairment loss
has been recognized or reversed during the peried,

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 21, Levies

[FRIC 21 clarifics that an entity recognizes a liability for a levy when the activity that triggers
pavment, as identified by the relevant legislation. occurs. For a levy that is triggered upon
reaching a minimum threshold. the interpretation clarifies that no linbility should be anticipated
before the speeificd minimum threshold is reached. Retrospective application 1s required for
IFRIC 21

Annual lmprovements to PFRSs (2010-2012 cycle} {PFRS 13, [rair Value Measurement)

In the 2010 - 2012 annual improvements cycle, seven amendments to six standards were issued,
which included an amendment to PFRS 13, Fair Value Measwrement. The amendmenl o
PFRS 15 is effective immediately and it clarifies that shorl-term receivables and payables with
o stated interest rates can be measured at invoice amounts when the effect of discounting is
immaterial,

Annual Improvernents to PFRSs (2011-2013 eycle) (PFRS L. Firse-time Adoption of PFRS)

In the 2001 — 2013 annual improvements cycle, four amendments to four gtandards were issued,
which included an amendment to PFRS |, First-fime Adoption of Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards-Firsi-time Adoption of PFRS. The amendment to PFRE | is effective
immediatelv It clarifies that an entity may choose to apply either a current standard or a pew
standard that is not vet mandatory, but permits carly application, provided cither standard is
applied consistently throughout the perieds presented in the entitv’s first PFRS financial
statements,
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Fulurg Changes m Accounting Policies

New standards ssued but not vet effietive as at the date of issuanee of the consolidared financial
statements are listed below. This is a listing of standards and imterpretations ssued, which the Group
reasonably expects to be applicable at a future date. The Group intends to adopt these standards
when they become effective.

*  PFRS 9, Financial Insirwments — Classification and Measurement (2010 version)

PFRS 9 {2010 version) reflects the first phase on the replacement of PAS 32 and applics to the
classification and measurement of financial assets and lighilities a5 defined in PAS 39, Minarcia!
Mastruments: Recogaition and Measwrement,. PFRS 9 requires all financial assets to be measured
ab Far value at mitial recognition. A debt financial assct may, if the fair value option (FV(0) is
not invoked, be subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model
that has the cbjective to hold the assets to collect the contractual cash flows and its contractual
terms give nse, on specificd dates, to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
mterest on the principal outstanding. Al other debt instruments are subseguently measured at
farr value through profit or loss. All equity financial assets are measured at fair value cither
through other comprehensive income (OCIY or profit or loss. Equity financial assets held for
trading must be measured at fair value through profit or loss. For FVO liabilities, the amount of
change in the Fur valoe of a hatality that is attributable to changes in credit risk must be
presented in OO The remainder of the change m fair valuc is presented in profit or loss, unless
presentation of the fair value change in respect of the lability's credit risk in OCT would creale
or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.  All other PAS 39 classification and
measurement requirements for financial liabilities have been carried forward into PFRS 9,
including the embedded derivative separation rules and the criteria for using the FYO. The
adoption of the first phase of PFRS % will have an effect on the classification and measurcment
of the Group’s financial assets, but will potentially have no mpact on the classification and
measurement of financial labilities.

PFRS @ (2010 version) is effective for annual periods beginning on or after Tanuary 1 20135
This mandatory adoplion date was moved to Janvary 1, 2008 whon the final version of PFRS 9
was adopted by the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC), Such adoption,
henwever, 15 still for approval by the Board of Accountancy (BOA).

*  Philippme laterpretation IFRIC 13, dgreements for the Consirnction of Real Iistare

This interpretation covers accounting for revenue and assecciated expenses by entities that
undertake the construction of real estate directly or through subcontractors. The interpretation
reguires that revenue on construction of real estate be recognized only upon completion, except
when such contract qualifies as construction cantract to be accounted for under PAS L1 or
mvelves rendering of services in which case revenue 1z recognized based on stage of
completion. Contracts invalving provision of services with the constriction materials and where
the risks and reward of ownership are transferred to the buver on a continuous basis will alzo be
accounrted for based on stage of completion, The SEC and the FRSC hawve deferred the
effectivity of this interpretation until the final Revenue standard is issued by the Intemational
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and an evaluation of the requirements of the final Revenue
standard against the practices of the Philippine real estate industry is completed. The adoption
of this inferprelation will cesult to a change in the revenue and cost recognition from percentage
af completion method to completed contract method, The Group is still monitoring the impact
of this new mterpretation to its consolidated financial statements.
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The following new standards and amendments issued by the TASB were already adopted by the
FRSC but are still for approval by BOA.

fffective Janwary {2003

PAS 19, Employee Benefits - Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions (Amendments)
PAS |19 requires an entily to consider contributions from employees or third parties when
accounting for defined benefit plans, Where the contributions are linked to service, they should
be atiributed to periods of service as a negative benefit. These amendments clarify that, if the
amount of the contributions is mdependent of the number of yvears of service, an entity is
permitted o recognize such contributions as a reduction in the service cost in the period in
which the service is rendered, mstead of allocating the contributions to the periods of service.
This amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015, It is not
expected that this amendment would be relevant to the Group, since none of the entities within
the Group has defined benefit plans with contributions from emplovees or third parties.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2010-201 2 cycle)

The Annual lmprovements o PFRSs {2010-2012 cyele) are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January |, 2015 and are not expected 1o have a material impact on the
Group. They include:

v PERS 2, Share-haved Pavment — Definition of Vesting Condition;

» PERS 3. fwiness Combinafions - Accounting for Contingent Consideration in o Bisiness
oo

s PFRS & Operating Svemenis — Aggregation of Operaiing Segments and Reconcifiation of
e Vedal of the Heporiable Segments " Assels fo the Enifiv’s Assels;

v PERS 13, Faie Value Meavirement - Shorr-term Receivables and Pavalles;

v PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment — Revaluation Method — Proportionate
Resraiement of Accummlated Depreciation;

o PAS 24, Related Paviy Disclosures - Key Managemen! Personnel; and

= PAS 3B Jmiangible Assets Revalnation Method Proporticautte  Restarement of
Acoumudated Amortization,

Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2011-2013 cycle)

The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2011-2013 cyele) are effcctive for annual periods
beginning on or atter January 1, 2015 and arc not expected o have a material mpact on the
Group., They include:

*  PFRS | Firsi-time Adoption of PFRS - Meaning of "Effective PFRSs

v DPFRS 3, Business Combinations — Scope Exceptions for Joint Arrangemenis,
v PFRS 13 Foir Vahie Measurement — Portfolio Hxception: and

= PAS AL fmvestment Property,
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Lffective Jannary £, 2016

PFRE 10, Consalidated Financial Statements and PAS 28, Drvesrments in Associates and Join
Ferfnres - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an [nvestor and its Associate or Joint Venture
These amendments address an acknowledged meonsistency between the requirements in PFRS
[0 and those in PAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the zale or contribution of assets between an
uvestor and (s asseciate or jeint venture. The amendments requice that a full gain or loss is
recognized when a transaction involves a business (whether it is housed in a subsidiany or not).
A partial gain or loss 15 recognized when a ransaction involves assets that do not constitute a
buziness, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary. These amendments are effective from
annpal periods bepmning on or after January 1, 2016,

PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements — Acconnting for Acquisitions of Inreresis in Joint Operations
{Amendments)

The amendments ta PFRS 11 require that a joint aperatar accounting for the acquisition of an
inlgrest in i joinl operation, in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a business
must apply the relevant PFRS 3 principles for business combinations accounting,  The
amendments also clarfy that a previoosly held interest in a joint operation is not remeasured on
the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint operation whils joint control is retamed.
In geldition, a scope exclusion has been added to FFRS L1 to specify that the amend ments do not
apply when the partics sharing joint controd, including the reporting entity, arc under commen
contral of the same ultimate controlling party.

The amend ments apply to both the acquisition of the initial mterest in a jomt aperation and the
acquisition of any additional inlerests 1o the same joiol operation and are prospectively effective
for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with carly adoption permitted. These
amendments are nat expacied o have any impact to the Groop.

PERS 14, Heaularory Deferral docounis

FFRS 14 15 an optional standard that allows an endity, whose activitics arc subject to rate-
regulation, to continue applving most of its ¢xigting accounting poheics for regulatory defermal
account balances wpon its first-time adoption of PFRS, Entitics that adopt PERS 14 must present
the regulatory deferral accounts as separate line items on the statenient of financial position and
present mavements in these account balances as separate ling items in the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive wcome. The standard requires diselosures on the nature of, and
risks associated with, the enlity’s mte-regulation and the effeers of that mate-regulation on s
financial statements, PFRS 14 s effective for annual periods beginning on or after Janoary |,
2016, Since the Group is an existing PFRS preparer, this standard would not apply,

PAS 16, Praperty, Plant and Fguipmene, and PAS 38, Btangible Asvets - Clavification of
Accegalle Methods of Depreciation and Amortization {Amendiments)

The amendments clarifly the principle i1 PAS 16 and PAS 38 that revenue rellects a pattern of
ceonomic benefits that are geoerated from operating a business {of which the asset is parn) rather
than the cconomic bencfits that are consumed through use of the asset. As a result, a revenue-
bazed method cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and max only be uged
in very limited circumstances to amortize miangible assete. The amendments are effective
prospectively for annual pericds beginning on or after January 1. 2016, with carly adoption
permitted. These amendments are not expedted o have any impact to the Group given that the
Ciroup has not used a revenue-hased method to depreciate its non-current assets.,
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PAS 16, Properiy, Plant and Equipment, and PAS 41, dgricnliure — Bearer Plants
[Amendments)

The amendments change the acconnting requirements for biological assets that meel the
defimbion of bearer plants. Under the amendments, biclogical assets that meet the detimtion of
bearer plants will no longer be within the scope of PAS 41, [natcad, PAS 16 will apply. After
initial recognition, bearer plants will be measured wnder PAS 16 at accumulated cost (hefore
maturity) and using cither the cost model or revaluation model (after maturity).  The
amendments also require that produce that grows on bearer plants will remain in the scope of
PAS 41 measured at fair value less costs to sell, For government grants related to bearer plants,
PAS 20, Accownting for Goversment Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance, will
apply. The amendments are retrospectively effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1. 2016, with carly adoption permitted. These amendments are not expected to have
amy impact to the Group as the Group docs not have any bearer plants,

PAS 27, Separate Minanciol Statesents — Feoeity Melthod in Separate Financial Statemerts
rAmendments)

The amendments will allaw entities to use the equity method to account for imvestments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate financial statements. Entities already
apphving PFRS and electing to change to the equity method in its separate Ananeial statements
will have to apply that change retrospeetively,  For fist-lime adopters of FFRS electing 1o use
the equity method inits separate financial statements, they will be requined to apply this method
fram the date of transition to PFRS. The amendments arc effcctive for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2006, with early adoption permitted. These amendments will not have any
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2002-2014 cvele)

The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2002-2014 cvele) are effective for annual perieds
beginning on or after January |, 2016 and are not expected to have a matenal impact on the
Group. They include:

* PFRS 5, Mon-curvent Axseis Held fe Sale and Diveontinued Operaiions - Changes in
Medhads of Disposal

= PERS T, Financial fnstmonents. Disclosures — Servicing Contracis

= PFRE T - Applicability of the Amendmens fo PERS 7 to Condensed fnterim Finaneial
Sierfements

* PAS 19 HEmplovee Benefits — regional marker issue regarding discount rate

PAS 34, fserim Financial Reporting — disclosure of information “elsewhere in the interim

Jinancial repart”

Ieffecrive Jamuary {2008

PYRS 4. Fancial Msiranesis — Hedge Accounting and amendments o FFRS 9, PFRS 7 and
PAS 39 (2013 version)

PFRS Y (20113 version) already includes the third phase of the project to replace PAS 39 which
pertains to hedze accounting. This version of PFRS 9 replaces the milestased hedge accounting
model of PAS 39 with a more principles-based approach. Changes include replacing the rules-
based hedge effectivencss test with an objectives-based test that focuses on the economic
relationship between the hedged item and the hedping instrument, and the effect of credit risk on
that econemic relationship; allowing risk components to be designated as the hedged item, nol
onlv for financial items but also for nen-financial items, provided that the sk component is
separately identifiable and reliably measurable; and allewing the tme value of an option, the
forward element of o forward contract and any foreign currency basis spread 1o be excluded
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tfrom the designation of a derivative instrument as the hedging instrument and accounted for as
costs of hedging. FFRS 9 also requires more extensive disclosures for hedge accounting.

PFRS 9 (2013 wersion) has no mandatory effective date. The mandatory effective date of
January 1. 2018 was eventually set when the final version of PFRS 9 was adopted by the FRSC.
The adeption of the final version of PFRS 9, however, is still for approval by BOA.

The adeption of PFRS 9 is net expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
consolidated fnancial statemenls,

PFRS 9. Minancial Inaranents (20014 or final version)

In July 2014, ihe Anat version of FIRS 9, fimencial Tnsirumends, was issued. PFRS 9 reflects all
phases of the financial instruments project and replaces PAS 39, Financial Instruments:
Recogntiion and Measurement, and all previous versions of PFRS 9 The standard introduces
new requircnents for classification and measurement, impairment, and hedge accounting,
PFES 9 is cffcctive for anmuoal periods beginming on or after Jamoary 1, 20018, with carly
application permitted. Retrospective application is required, but comparative information is not
compulzory. Early application of previous versions of PERS O is permitted if the date of initial
application is before February 1, 2005, The adoption of FFRS 9 is not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

The tollowing new standard issued by the TASE has not vet been adopted by the FREC.

IFRS |3, Revenne from Contracts with Customery

[FRS 13 was issucd in May 2014 and establishes a now fve-step medel thal will apply o
revenue arising from contracts with customers.  Under [FRS 13 revenve is recognized at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in cxchange for
lransfEiming poods or services 10 4 cusinmer.

The principles in IFRS 13 provide a mare structured approach to measuring and recognizing
revenue. The new revenue standard is applicabls to all entitics and will supersede all current
revenue recogmition. Either a full or modified retrospeotive application = required for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017 with early adoption permitted.  The Group is
currently assessing the impact of ITFRS 13 and plans to adept the new standard on the mequized
effeenve date once adopted locally.

Business Combinations and Geoodsaall

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method, The cost of an acguisition is
measwred as the ageregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair valug
and the amount of any MC1 in the acquiree.  For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measurg the NCT in the acquires at fair wvalue or at the proportionate share of the
acquirce’s idemifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred and included in
admimislrative cxpenses.

When the Group acquires a business, it asscsses the financial assets and Labilines assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition dare. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.
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When such an acquisition is not judged to be an acquisition of a business, it s not treated as a
business combination. Rather, the cost to acquire the corporate entity is allocated between the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the entity based on their relative fair values at the acquisition
date. Accordingly, no goodwill or additional deferred tax arises.

1f the business combination is achicved in stages, any previously held equity interest i3 re-measured
at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss. It is
then considered in the determination of goodwill.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recogmzed at fair value ar the
acquisition date.  Contingent consideration classified as an assel or liability that is a finangizal
nstrument and within the scope of PAS 3% is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognized either in profit or loss or as a change to OCI. If the contingent consideration is not swithin
the scope of PAS 39, it is measurcd in accordance with the appropriate PFES.  Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured and subsequent settlement is aceounted
far within eguily.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the amount recognized for NCI, and any previons mierest held, over the net
ientifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed, If the fair value of the net assets acquired is i
gvcess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly
identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used
1o measure the amounts to be recognized at the acquisition date. If the re-assessment still results in
an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then
the gain 15 recognized in profit or loss.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any aceummulated impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired In a business combination is. from the
acyuisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s CGUs that are expected to benefit from the
combination. irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those
LTS,

Where zoodwill has been allocated to a CGU and part of the operation within that unif is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the camrying amount of the
pperation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances
is measurcd based on the relative valucs of the disposed operation and the portion of the CGL
rotaincd

Current versus Noncurrent Classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial postlion based on
current or noneurrent classification,

At asset is current when 1t is:

»  expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed m nermal gperating evele,

v eld primarily for the purpose of trading,

= cxpeeted to be realized within twelve months after the roporting period, or

»  cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to scttle a liability for at
least twelve months afler the reporting period,
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All ather assets arc classificd as noncurrent.

A liatuliey s current when;

* its expected to be settled in normal operating evele,

* it 35 held primarily for the purpose of trading,

v it s due to be settled within twelve menths after the reporting periad, or

* ibere 15 no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liabality for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

The Giroup classifies all other liabilities as noncurrent,
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are classified as noncurrent assets and Labilitics,

Fair Value Measurement

The Group measzures financial instruments, such as financial assels at FYPL and AFS financial
assels and non-tinancial assets such as investtnent properties, at fair value at each reporting date.
Additional fair value related dizelosures including fair values of finaneial instruments measured at
amertized cost arc disclosed in Note 34,

Fair value 15 the price that would be recerved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability 1o an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measorement date,  The fair value
measurement 15 based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the assct or transfor the
lakelity takes place cither:

= the principal market for the asset or lability, or
* o the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability,

The principal or the most advantagecus market must be accessible to the Group,

The fair value of an asset or a liability 1s measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the assct or babality, assuming that market participants act in their
ceonomic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market paricipant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to ancther
market participant that wonld use the asset in its highest and beat use.

Tl Group wses valuation technigques that are appropriate e the arcomstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minumizing the use of unobservable inpurs.

All asscts and habilitics for which fair value 15 measurad or disclosed o the consolidated fnancial
statements are categarized within the fair value hicrarchy, desenibed as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measursment as & whols:

v Level |- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for wdentical assets or liabilibies,

*  Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measuremnent is directly or indirectly abservable.

* Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement 15 unobservable.
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For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring
busis, the Group determines whether trans{ers have occurred between levels in the leerarcly by re-
assessing catcgorization {(based on the lowest level mput that is significant to the fair value
mensurement as a whole) at the end of cach reporting period

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assuts and liabilitics
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair
vatue hicrarchy as explained above.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks that earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Cash
cquivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition and are subjeet 1o
an insignificant risk of change in value,

Financial Instniments

fnitiad Recognition oird Measnrement

Financial instruments are tecognized initially at fair value, adjusted for dircetly attributable
(ransaction costs in the case of financial instruments not at FYBL, The Group recognizes a financial
instrument in the consolidated statement of financial position when it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the insirument.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial asscts are recognized on the trade date, which 1s the
date that the Group commits to purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by
repulation or convention in the marketplace.

Clevxification

Financial asscts are classified as financial assets at FVPL, loans and receivables, held to maturity
(HTM) financial assets, and AFS financial assets as appropriate. Financial liabilities are classified as
financial liabilitics at FVYPL and other financial liabilities. The Group determines the classification
of its financial instruments at initial reeognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates the
designation at cach reporting date.  As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the group has no HTM
linancial assets and financial habilities at FVPL.

Financial Asseis or Liabilities af FVPL
Financial instruments at FVPL include financial assets or liabilities held for trading and thosc
designated upon initial recognition as financial assets or liabilitics at FVPL.

Financial assets and liabilitics are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
selling wn the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments or financial guarantes
contracts,  Dividends, interests and gains or losses on held for trading financial instruments are
recognized m the profit or loss.

Financial instruments may be designated at initial recognition as financial asscts or liabilitics at
FWPL when any of the following critena are met: (1} the designation climinates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring the assels or liabilities
ar recognizing, the gains or losses on them ona different basis; (17) the asscts or liabilitics are part of
a wroup of financial instruments which are managed and their performances are evaluated on fiir
value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management stralegy, or iy the financal
instrumient containg an cmbedded derivative that would need to be separately recorded.
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Az of December 31, 2004 and 2013, the Group has investments in shares of stock of vanons publicly
listed companies which are classificd as held for rading financial assets.

Lewans coned Reeeivabies

Loans and receivables are non-derivalive financial assets wath fixed or determmable payments that
are nol quoted in an active market.  Afler initial measurenent, loans and receivables are
subscquently earnied at amortized eost using the effective interest mte (EIR) method, less any
allowance for impairment. EIR 15 the mte that exactly discounts the estimated future cash pasyments
or receipts over the expected hift of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to
the net carrving amount of the financial asset or liability. Amortized cost is caleulated taking into
account any discount or promiuwm on acquisition, and includes foes that are an integral parl of the
EIR. The EIR amortization 15 included in interest income in the profit or loss. Gains and losses arg
recogmzed in profit or loss when the loans and receivables are derecognized, impaired or amortized.

As of December 31, 20004 and 2013, the Group’s leans and receivables consist of cash in banks, cash
eouivalents, cash in escrow, reecivables (except for advances to contractors and suppliers) and

refundable deposits.

ARN Financial Asseiy

AFS fnancial assets nelude equity mvestments. Equity investments classified as AFS are those that
are neither classified as held for trading nor designated as at FVPL, Financial assets may be
designated at initial recognition as AFS financial assets if they are purchased and held indefinitely,
and may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes in market conditions.

AFS financial assels are carried at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Changes in fair value of such assets are accounted for in OCT in the comulative changes in Tair value
of AFS financial assels until the financial assets are derccognized or until they are determined 1o be
impaired. When an AFS financial asset 13 derecopmzed or determmed to be mpaired. the
cumitlative gaing or losses previously recorded in OCH ane recognized in profit or loss,

[nvestments in equity investments that do not have quoted market prices in an active market and
whose fair values cannat he reliably measured are carried at their cost, less any impaimment in value.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group’s investment in proprictary club shares and listed and
unhisted shores of stock are classified as AFS financial assets.

Chifrer Divoncial Liabilines
This eategony pertaing to financial habilities that are not held for trading nor designated as financial
Hiabilitics at FVPL upon inception of the lakility.

Other financial liabilities are initially recorded at fair value, less dircetly attributable transaction
costs. After mitial recognition, other financial liabilities are carricd at amortized cost using the EIR
method.  Amortized cost is caleulated by laking into account any 1ssue coste, and any discount ar
premiom on settlement. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the habilitics arc
derecognized or amaortized.

As af Decerber 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group's other financial liabilities include accounts payable
and other current liabilities (exeept for customers™ deposits, reservation payables, output VAT,
doferred output VAT and withhelding taxes), bank loaus, deposits from tenants and accrued
emploves benefits (exeluding defined benefit Liability).
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Firencia! Chuaraniee

Financial guarantees are not recoguized in the consolidated financial statements until an obligation to
pav the liability of another pany 1o the arrangement is established. Such liability s classified as
other financial liability, 1t is only disclosed as part of liquidity risk of the Group.

Dietermination of Fair Value

The fair value of financial instruments that are actively traded in organized financial markets is
determined by reference to quoted market bid prices at the close of business on the reporting date.
Far investments and all other financial instruments where there is no active market, fair value g
derermined usmg valuation techniques.  Such techniques include using arm’s-length market
transactions: reference to the current market value of another instrument, which is substantially the
same; and discounted cash flow (DCF) analysis and other valuation models. If the fair value cannot
be measured reliably, the financial instruments are measured at cost, being the fair value of the
consideration paid, in casc of an asset, and received, in case of a liability. All transaction costs
dircetly attributable to the acquisition are also included in the cost of investment.

Ligne | Difference

Where the tansaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value from other
abservable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technigue
whose variables include only data from observable market, the Group recogmzes the difference
berween the transaction price and fair value (a Day 1 difference) in the prefit or loss unless it
qualifics for recognition as some other type of asset. In cases where the data used are not
observable, the difference betwesn the transaction price and model valug is only recogmzed 1 the
profit or loss when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each
transaction. the Group determines the appropriate method of recognizing the Day 1 difference,

Effvening

A financial asset and a financial Bability are offset and the net amount is reported in the conselidated
statement of financial position if. and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognized amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the assct and settle
the liability simultansously. This is not generally the case with master netting agreement, and the
related assets and liabilitics are presented gross in the consolidated statement of financial position.

{mpairment of Financial Assets

The Group assesses, at cach reporting date, whether there is ebjective evidence that a financial assct
ar a group of financial asscts is unpaired.  An impaiment exsts If onc or more cvents that has
accurred since the initial recognition of the asset {(an incurred “loss event’), has an impact on the
cstimated foture cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assers that can be reliably
cstimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is
expericncing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankmptey or other financial reorganization and observable data
indicating that ther¢ is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or cconomic conditions that correlate with defaults,
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Financial Assets Carried qt Amartized Cost

For financial assets carried at amaortized cost, the Group first assesses whether impairment exists
mdividually for financial assets that are individvally sigoificant, or collectively for financial
assels Lhat are not individually significant, 1f the Group determines that no ebjective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit nisk chameteristics and
collectivily assesses them for impairment.  Assets that are individually assessed for impairment
and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not included in a
colleetive assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrving amount and the present value of estimated firture cash flows (excluding future expeeted
credit losses that have not vet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash
flows is discounted at the financial asset’s oniginal EIR,

The camyving amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the loss
is recognized in the profit or loss. Interest income (recorded as finance ncome in the profit or
loss) continues to be acerued on the reduced earrving amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impainment loss.
Loans together with the asseciated allowance are written off when there 1s no realistic prospect
of future recovery and all collateral has been realized ar has been transferred to the Group, If in
a subscquent vear, the amount of the estimated impaimment loss inercases or decreases because
of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized
impainment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-ofT is
later recovered, the recovery is credited to finance costs in the profit or loss.

Al Financial Asseis
For AFS financial assets, the Group assesses at cach reporting date whether there 15 objective
cvidence that an investment or a group of investinents is impaired.

In the case of equity investments classified as AFS, objective evidence would include a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost. “Significant’
is evaluated against the original cost of the investment and ‘prolonged’ against the period in
which the fair value has been below its original cost. When there is evidence of impaimment, the
cumulative loss, measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current tair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in profit or loss, is
removed from OCI and rocognized in the profit or loss.  Impairment losses on equily
ivestments are not reversed through profit or loss; increases in their fair value after imparrment
are recognized in OCL

Finaneial Assets Cavried af Cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an unquoted equity
jpstnument that is not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or
on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
instrument, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of roturn for a similar finangal asset.
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Flerevogeniiions

. Fincmciod Avsefs
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) s primanly derceognized {ie removed from the Group's consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

*  The rights to recerve cash flows from the asset have expired: or

*  The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
abligation ta pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either {a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transterred control of the asset.

wWhen the Group has transferred its rights to recgive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what cxtent, it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognize
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the nights and obligations that the Group has retained.

ho Fusancicd Liahiliies
A financial liabiliey is derceognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different tenns, or the erms of an existing lability are subsuntally
modificd, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of an original lability
and a recomnition of a new liability, The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the profit or loss,

Properiies Fleld for Sale

Properties held for sale are propertics heing constructed or acquired for sale in the ordinary course of
busingss, rather than for rental or capital appreciation, and are carricd at the lower of cost and net
realizable value (NEV) NRV is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the busmess,
hased on market prices at the reporting date, less estimated costs of completion and estmated costs
Lo =ell.

Candominivm Units Held for Sale

Cost of condominium units beld for sale represent accumulated costs of the unsold wnits of the
completed Projects. Cost includes those dircetly attributable to the construction of the Projects such
as cost of land, dircet materials, bormowing costs, professional and consultancy fees, and project
management costs, which are allocated to the unsold units.

Consiraction in Progresy

Cost of construction in progress represents the accurnulated costs for the construction and
development of the ongoing Projects. [t includes those that are dircctly attributable o the
construction of the Projects such as cost of land, direct materials, borrowing costs, prafessional and
consultancy fees, and project management costs,
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Prepaviments and Other Current Assets

Mrepald Commission and [ocpenses

Prepaid commission and capenses include cxpenditures alrcady pard but not vet incuered and from
which fulure econonie benelits are expected to flow to the Group within the normal operating cvele.
These are measurcd at cost less allowance for impairment losses, if any,

{ reditable Witkholding Tox (CHT
CWT ceprosents taxes withheld for goods and services provided. CWTs can be claimed as credit
against income tax due.

lnvestments in Associaies

An associate 1= an entity over which the Group bas significant mtluence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investes, but is not congrol
ar joint contral over those policics.

The consideranons made in determining significant influence are similar to those necessary to
determine control over subsidiaries, and are penerally accompanving a shareholding between 209 to
A% of the vering rights.

A investiment in associate is accounted for using the cquity method from the date when it becomes
an associate, On acquisition of the investment, any difference between the cost of the investment
and the investor’s share in the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent labilities is accounted for as follows:

a. Cioodwill relating to an associate s included in the camyving amount of the investment,
However, amortization of that goodwill 11 not permitted and 15 theretbre not included i the
determination af the Group’s share in the associate’s profits or losses.

b, Anyv excess of the Group's share in the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of the investment is excluded from the carrving
amount of the westiment and is instead included as income in the determination of the
Company’s share in the associate’s profit or loss in the peried o which the investment 15
acquired.

Under the cquity method, the invesiment 1n an associate s initially recognized at cost. The carmying
amount of the investment 15 adjusted 1o recognize changes in the Group's share of net assets of the
associate since the acquisition date, Goodwill relaling to the associate or Joint venture 15 mcluded m
the carmving amount of the investmenl and s neither amortized oor individuallv tested for
impatrment,

The profit or loss reflects the Group’s share of the resulls of operations of the associate. Any change
in OCT of those investees is presented as part of the Group's OCL In addition, when there has been a
change recognized directly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognizes its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consalidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealized gains and
losses resulting from transactions berween the Group and the associate are elinunated to the extent of
thi intercst in the associate.

The ageresate of the Group’s share in net profit or loss of an associate is reported i the consolidaled
statement of comprehensive income outside operting profit and represents profit or loss after tax
angd NCT in the subsidiaries of the asseciate.
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The financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group.
When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the
Ciroug.

Adler application of the cquity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary 10 recognize an
impairment loss on its investment in ils associate, At each reporting date, the Group determines
whether there is abjective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If there is such
evidence, the Group caleulates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable
amount of the associate and its carrving value, then recognizes the loss as “Share in net profit (loss)
of an associate” in the profic or loss.

The Group discontinues the use of equity method from the date when it ceases to have significant
influence over an associate and accounts for the investment in accordance with PAS 39 from that
date, provided the associate does not become a subsidiary or a joint arrangement as defined in
PFRS 1. Upan loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measurcs and TCCOETZES
anv retained investment at its fair value.  Any difference between the earrying amount of the
associatc upon loss of significant mfluence and the fair value of the retaned investment and
proceeds from dispesal is recognized in the profit or loss.

Investment Properties
Investment properties consist of land and buildings that arc held for long-term rental viclds or for
capital appreciation or both, and that are not owner-occupied by the companies in the Group.

Investment properties are measured mitially at their costs, including related transaction costs. The
cest of a purchased investment property comprises of its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs. Transaction costs include transfer taxes, profossional foos and other costs necessary to bring
the investment properties to the candition necessary for them to be capable of being used.

Alter initial recognition, investment properties are carmed at fair value. Gains or losses ansing from
changes in Bair value are recorded in profit or loss in the year in which they arise. Fair valugis based
on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition
of the specific asset,

The Group obtaing an updated appraisal report when management belicves there are significanl
changes in the fair valuss of the investment properties. The fair values of investment properties are
determined by independent valuers. The fair value of each of the Group’s investment preperty is
determined whenever there are significant changes in the assumptions used in determining the fair
value, Ao vestment property that 15 being redeveloped for continwing use as investment property,
ar for which the market has become less active, conlinues to be measured at fair value.

A subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrving amount only when it 15 probable that
future coononic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be reliably measured. Repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in
which they are ineurred.
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Investment propertics are derceognized when they are disposed of or permanently withdrawn from
use and no fiture cconomic benefit is expected from their disposal . Aoy gain or less an the
retirement or disposal of an mvestment praperty is recognized in the profit or loss. Gain or loss on
disposal of mvestment property is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrving amount of the asset at the date of disposal,

Transfers are made to investment properties when, and only when, there is a changs in use,
evidenced by the ending of owner-occupation or commencement of an operating lease to another
party. Transfers are made from investment properties when, and only when, there is a change in use,
evidenced by the commencement of owner-occupation or commencement of development with a
view to sell,

When the Group completes the construction or development of a self-constructed nvestment
property that will be carried at fair value, any difference between the fair value of the property at that
datc and its previous carrying amount shall be recognized in profit or loss. 1f a land or building and
building improvement classified as “Property and equipment™ becomes an investmenl property, the
Giroup accounts far such praperty in accordance with the policy stated under property and equipment
up 1o the date of change in use, For transfer from investment property carried at fair value o
property and equipment or construclion in progress, the investment propertly’s deemed cost shall be
its fair value at the date of change in use.

Feal Estate Development Projects

The real estate development projects are undertaken by the subsidiaries and are carried at cost less
anv ampaimment in value.  Cost primarily consists of acquisition cost of the property being
constructed, air rights, expenditures for the development and construction of the real estate praject
and borrowing eosts  inewrred, if any, in the acqusition of qualifying assets during  the
construction period and up to the date of completion of construction.

[pon completion, the accumulated costs are reclassified to investment property or properties held
for sale depending on the future use of the praperty at the then carrying amount.

Properly and cquipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, and
accumulated impairment losses, if any,

The initial costs of property and cquipment consist of their purchase priccs and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the assets to their working condition and location for their intended use.
Expenditures incurred after the property and equipment have been put into operation, such as repair
and maintenance costs, are recognized in profit or loss n the year in which the gosts are incurred. In
situations where il can be ¢learly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an increase in
Ruture cconomic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property and cquipment
bevond its orginally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as additional
gosts of property and equipment,

Depreciation and amartization commence once the asscts are available for use and are provided on
all property and equipment at rates caleulated to write off the costs. less estimated residual values
based on prices prevailing at the reporting date, of cach asset evenly over its expected useful life as
Follows:

SHANG FROPERTIES 1014



Catcgory Useful Lives in Years

Building improvements 25
Transporation equipment Ztod
Furniture, fxtures and other eguipment 2tod

Depresiation or amortization ceases at the carlier of the date when the asset is classified as cither
imvestment property or property held for sale and the date the asset is derecognized.

The assets” estimated usefal lives (EUL), and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed
periodically to ensure that these arc consistent with the expected patiemn of coonomic benefits from
the items of property and equipment. The assets” estimated residual values are reviewed periodically
and adjusted if appropriate.

Fully depreciated and amortized propery and equipment are retained in the accounts until they are
na longer in use, and no further depreciation and amortization are charged to profit or loss,

An dtem of property and cquipment s derecognized upon disposal or when no future cconomic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal.  Any gain or loss arising from derccognition of the
assel (caleulated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrving amount of the
assel) is ncluded in the profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

lmpairment of Nonfinancial Assers

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that the nonfinancial assets
consisting of mvestments in associates, real estate development projects. property and cquiprent
and goodwill may be impaired. [Fany such mdication exists, or when annual impairment testing for
an assct 15 required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.  An asset’s
recoverable amount is the gher of an asset’s or CGU's fair value less cost to sell and 1t value in
use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflaws that are
largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. Where the carrving amount of an
asset cnceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered 1mpaired and 13 written down to iis
recoverable amount.  In assessing value in wse, the estimated future cash flows are discounted o
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks speeific 10 the agset. Impairment losses, if anv, are recogmized in profit
or loss in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired assets.

An assessment is made at cach reporting date as to whether there is any indication that the previously
recopnized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amount 1s estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is roversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the azset’s or CGU's recoverable amount
singe the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case. the carrving amount of the asset or
CGLU is increased to its recoverable ameunt.  That increased amount cannot cxceed the camying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, had no impairment
loss boen recognized for the asset in prior vears. Such reversal is recognized in profit or loss. After
such a reversal. the depreciation or amortization charge s adjusted in future periods to allocate the
assot’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a svstematic basis over its remaming
usehul life,
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The following eritena are also applied in assessing impairment of specific assets:

Frvestmenis i Asociales

After application of the cquity method, the Group determings whether it is nocessary to recognize
impairieit 1oss on the Group’s nvestments m associates, The Group detenmines at each reporting
date whether there is objective evidence that an investment is impaired. 1f that 15 the case, the Group
calenlates the amount of impairment as the difference between the fair wvalue of the investes
company and the carrving value of (he mvestmenl, The difference is recognized in profit or loss.

Croewfwali

Impaarment testing for goodwill is performed annually and when circumstances indicate that its
carrying value may be impaired. Impairment is determined by assessing the recovershle amount of
the CGU or group of CGUs to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the
CGU or group of CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated is less than its carrying amount, an
impairinent Joss is recognized in the profit or loss. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannct be
reversed in future periods.

Borrowwine Costs

Borrewing costs directly atributable to the acquisition, constmuction or production of & qualifving
assef that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for s infended vse or sale arg
capitalized as part of (he cost of the asset.  Other borrowing costs are expensed in the periad in
which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of inlercst and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the berrowing of funds.

Customers’ Deposits

Customers” depesits mainly represent reservation foes and advance pavments. These deposits will
be reeopnized as revenue in the consolidated statement of income as the related obligations to the
real estate bovers are fulbfilled.

Creposits from Tenants
Creposits from tenants are camied at the present value of future cash flows using appropriate discount
rales,

The differcnce between the present value and the actual deposit reeeived is treated as additional
rental incentive which is recorded under “Deferred lease meome™ in the statement of financial
position and are recognized as rental income wsing the straight-line methad over the teom of the
lease,

Refundable Deposits
Refundable deposits represent cash received from customers for rent and utilitics which arc cxpeeted
to be returned after a specified period of time, or when certain conditions are satisfied.

Provisions

Provisions areg recognized when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result
of a past cvent: it is probabls that an outflow of resources embedying economic benefits will be
required o settle the obligation; and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the ebligation.
If the cffoct of the tme value of money is materal, provision is determined by discounting the
cupected future cash flows at a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the lability, Where discounting is
used, the increase in provision due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense. When the
Giroup expects a provision or loss to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate
assel only when the reimbursement is virtually cerain and ils amount is estimable.  The expense
relating to any provision is presented in profit or loss, net of any reimbursement,
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Equity

el Stock and APIC

Capnal stock s measured at par value for all shares issued.  When the shares are sold al o
premaurt, the difference between the proceeds and the par value 15 cradited o the “APIC™ account,
When shares arg issued for a consideration other than cash, the procceds are measured at the fair
value of consideration received. In case the shares are issued 1o extinguish or settle a lability of
the Parent Company, the shares are measured either at the fair value of the shares issued or fair
value of the liability settled, whichever 15 more reliably determinahle,

Lreasnry My

Owen equity instruments that are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognized at cost and deducted
from equity. Mo zain or lozs is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, ssuc or
cancellation of the Group’s own equily instruments. Any difference between the carrving amount
and the consideration, if reissucd, is also recognized in the APIC. When the sharcs are retired, the
capital stock account is reduced by its par value and the excess of cost over par valie, upon
retircment, s charged to APIC when the shares are issued.

Cither Components of foguity

These are recorded for items that are directly recognized in equity, which nclude cumulative
changes in Fair value of AFS financial assets, eumulative translation adjustments and remeasurement
gains (osses) on defined benefit liability. They are measured cither at gross amount or net of tax
effeet depending an the tax laws and regulations that apply,

Oeher components of squity are derceognized when the related asset or hability where they anse are
dereeognized,

Retabred Farnines

Retained earnings melude cumulative profits atributable to the Parent Company’s stockhaolders, and
reduced by dividends. Retained eamings also include effect of changes in accounting policies as
miay be required by the standards” ransiional provisions.

Fiividend Distribntion

The Company recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the Parent
Company when the distribution is authorized and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the
Group. As per the corporate laws in the Philippines, a distribution is anthorized when it 15 declared
b the Board. A comesponding amount is recognized directly in equity.

Revenue and Expense Recornition

Revenue 1s recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Giroup and the amount of revenoe and expense can be reliably measured, regardless of when the
colleerion or pavment is made, Revenue is measured at the far value of consideration received or
receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes and
dutics,

The Group assesses 1S rovenue arrangements against specific criteria in order to determine if it is
acting as a principal or as an agent. The Group has concluded that it is acting as the principal in all
of ils major revenue arrangements since it 1s the primary ebligor i all the revenue arrangements, has
pricing latitude and is also exposed to properties held for sale and credit risks.

The following speeific recogiition criteria must also be met before revenue and expenses are
recopized:
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Coandomininm Sales

The Group asscsses whether it is probable that the ceonomic benefits will flow to the Group when
the contract price is collectible. Collectability of the contract price is demonstrated by the buyer’s
commitment to pay, which is supported by the buver’s imitial and continuous investments that
motivates the buver to honor its obligation.  Callectability 15 also assessed by considering factors
such as collcctions and credit standing of the buyer.

Revenue from condominium sales is accounted for using the full aceral method.  In accordance
with Philipping [nterpretations Commuttee Q&A No, 2006-01, the percentage of completion (POC)
method is used to recognize income from condominium sales where the Group has material
abligations under the sales contract to complete the real estate project after the unit is sold. the
cquitable interest has been transferred to the buyer, construction is bevond preliminary stage (e,
ehgincering, design work, construction contracts execution, site clearance and preparation,
excavation and the building foundation are fimshed), and the costs incurred or to be incurred can be
measured reliably. Under this method, revenue is recognized as the related obligations are fulfilled.
measured principally on the basis of the estimated completion of a physical proportion of the
contract work.

Any excess of collections over the recognized revenue are included in the “Customers’ deposits”
account in the consolidated statement of financial position. If the revenue recognition ¢riteria under
the full acerual or POC method are not met, the deposit methed is applied until all the conditions for
recommizing a sale are met.  Until revenue from condominium sales is recognized, cash roccived
from customers are recognized also as part of “Customers” deposits.”

{ost of real estate sales is rocognized consistent with the revenue regognition method applied. Cost
of condominium units sold before the completion of the development is determined on the basis of
the acguisition cost of the land plus its full development costs, which include estimated costs for
fisture development waorks,

The cost of condominium sales recognized in profit or loss on their disposal is determined with
reference ta the specific cost incurred on the property, allocated to saleable area based on relative
gize and takes into account the POC used for revenue recognition purposes.

Estimated loss on unsold units 15 recagnized in profit or loss immediately when it is probable that
lotal project costs will execed total contract revenue,

Herian

Rental revenues from the leasing of properties held under operating lease are recognized on a
straight-line basis over the periods of the respective leases or on a certain percentage of gross
revenue of the lessees, whichever is appropriatc.

frterest Inoome

interest income 1§ recognized as it accrues, taking into account the effective vicld on the asset.
Interest income from accretion of installment contracts receivable is recognized using the EIR
rvathoxd,

Pinadend Income
Revenue is recognized when the Group's night to receive the payment is gstablished, which is
senerally when the Board of the mvestee company approved the dividend.
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CMher Service Ineome

Administration and management services, customer lounge fecs, banner income, income from
cincma operations and other service income are recognized when the related services have been
rendered. Revenues from avxiliary services such as handling. sale of scrap materials, import break
bulk and brokerage are recognized when services are provided or when goods are delivered. Money
received or amounts billed in advance for rendering of services or delivery of goods are recorded as
ungarned income until the caming process is complete.

(emmission Fxpense

Commissions paid to sales and marketing agents on the sale of pre-completed units are deformed
when recoveries are reasonably expected and are charged to expense in the period in which the
related revenues are recogmzed as earned.  Accordingly, when the POC method 15 used,
commissions are likewise charged 1o expense in the peried the related revenues are recognized.

Creneral ond Administraiive Expenses
General and administrative expenses are recognized as incurred.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the armangement 1s dependent
on the usc of a specific asset or assets and the arangement conveys a right to use the asset.
A reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if one of the following applics:

a.  there is a change in contractual terms, other than a rencwal or extension of the arrangement:

h. a renewal option is oxercised or cxtension is granted. unless that term of the renewal or
extension was initially included in the lease term:

¢ lherc isa change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a speciticd assel; or

d  there is a substantial change to the asset.

When a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the
change in circumstances give rise o the reassessment for seenarios {a). (¢) or (d) above, and at the
date of renewal or extension period for scenario {b).

(rroup as the Lessor

Leases in which the Group docs not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of
the assets are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating
lease are added to the carying amount of the rental receivables or customers’ deposits and
recognized over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized
as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Emploves Benefits

Herirement Benefits

The net defined benefit liability or asset is the aggregate of the present value of defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period reduced by the fair value of plan assets (if any), adjusted
far anv cffeet of limiting a net defined benehit asset to the asset ceiling.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is actuarially determined using the
projected unit credit method.
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Defined benefit costs comprise the follewing:

*  gprvice cost,
= notinterest on the net defined benefit liability or asset, and
» remeasurements of net defined benefir liability or asset.

Service costs which include current sarvice costs, past service costs and gains or losses on nan-
routing settlements are recognized as expense in profit or loss. Past service costs are recognized
when plan amendment or curtailment occurs.  These amounts arc caleulated periodically by
mdependent qualified actuarics.

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is the change during the period in the net
defined benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined by applying
the discount rate based on sovemment bonds to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Net interest
on the net defined benefit hability ar asset is recognized as expense or meome in profit or loss,

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, retumn on plan assets and any change m the
cffeet of the asset ceiling (cxcluding net interest on defined bencfit liability) are recoghized
immediately in OCT in the period in which they anse. Remeasurements are not reclassified 1o profit
or boss m subsequent periods.

Plan assels are assets that are held by a long-term emplovee benefit fund or qualifying insurance
policies. Plan assets are not available to the creditors of the Group, nor can they be paid directly to
the Group. Fair value of plan assets is based on market price information. When no market price is
available, the fair value of plan assets is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects both the risk associated with the plan asscis and the maturity or
expected disposal date of those assets {or, if they have no maturity, the expeeted peried until the
settlement of the related obligations). If the fair value of plan assets is higher than the present valuc
af defined benefit obligation, the measurement of the resulting defined henefit asset is limited to the
present value of economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in
future contributions to the plan.

The Group's right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditures required to scitle a defined
benefit obligation is recognized as a separate asset at fair value when and only when reimbursement
iz wirtually coramn.

Toerminaiion Beaefit

Termination benefits are emplovee benefits provided i exchange for the tormuwation of an
emplovee’s employment as a result of either an entity’s decision to terminate an employee’s
employment before the normal retirement date or an employea’s decision 1o accept an offer of
benefits in exchange for the termination of employment.

A liability and an expense for a termination benefit is recognized at the earlier of when the entity can
ne longer withdraw the offer of the benefit and when the entity recognizes related restructuring
costs Initial recognition and subsequent changes to temmination benefit are measured 0 accordance
with the natere of the emplavee benefit, as either post-employment bencfit, short-term emplovee
benefit, or ather lang-term employee benefit. Benefits falling due more than twelve menths from the
reporting date arc discounted to their present values,
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Fnplovee Leave Bntitlement

Emplavee entitlements to anmual leave are recognized as a lability when they are accrued to the
cmplovess. The undiscounted liability for leave expected to be settled wholly before twelve months
alter the end ol the anmual reporting period is recognized for services rendered by employees up to
Ui cnd of the reporting period. The Rability for leave expected o be settled more than twelve
months after the end of the annwal reporting pericd are discounted to its present value.

Foreien Currencies

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in Peso, which is also the Parent
Company’s functional currency. For cach entity, the Groug determines their functional curreney and
iterms inchuded in the finaneial statements of each entity are measured vsing that functional currency.
The Groop uses the direet method of consolidation and has elected to reevele the gains or losses that
arige from using this method.

Transactions and Balances
Transactions in forcign currencies are initially recorded by the Group's entities at their respective
functional currenay spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Vonetary assets and lLiabilitics denominated m foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currengy spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Differences arising on settlement or translalion
ol monetary itoms are recognized in profit or loss.

Mon-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a forcign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign curreney are (ranstated osing the exchange rates at the date when the far value s
determined, The gain or loss arsing on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is
treated i line with the recognition of gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i_e., translation
dilferences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in OCI or profit or loss arc also
recognized in OCL or profit or loss, respeetively).

Corgupy pmpiiles

Om consolidation, the assets and liabilitics of Gipsey and SHIL, foreign subsidiaries with functional
and presentation eumreney of Hong Kong Dallar (HK$), are translated into Peso at the mate of
cachange prevailing at the reporting date and their income statements are translated at cxchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. The exchange differenees arising on translation for
consolidation are recagnized in OCL On disposal of a foreign subsidiary, the component of OCI
relating to that particular foreign subsidiary is recognized in profit or loss.

orrern Tan

Current tax asscts and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured al the amount
cxpected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authoritics. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that have been enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date:.

In the sale of condeminium units tesulting to recognition of installment contracts receivable, full
recognition for income tax purposes is applied when more than 25% of the selling price has been
collected in the vear of sale. Otherwise, the installment method is applied.
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Deferred Tax

Dieferred tox is provided an temporary dilfferences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of
assels and liabilines and their carrving amounts for financial reporting purposes.  Deferred tax
lialiltios are recognized for all pable temporary differences, excepr:

= where the deferred tax liability ariszs from the imitial recognition of geodwill or of an asset o
ltability in a ransaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affeets neither the accounting income nor taxable income or loss: and

* in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with imvestments in subsidiaries and
associpies and interest in joint arrangements, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
dilferences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary diflerences will not reverse in
the foresceable future.

Dieferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carrvforward benefits of
excess minimwm corporate income tax (MCIT) over regular corporate income tax (RCIT) and net
aperating loss carryaver (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that taxable income will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the camyforward bencfits of
excess MCIT over RCIT and NOLCO can be utilized except:

+  where the deferred Lax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an assct or liability in a transaction that is not a business combinarion and. at the
time of the trangaction, affects neither the accounting ingome nor Laxable profic or loss: and

* i respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiarics and
asseciates and interost in joint arrangements, deferred tas assets are recognized only to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeabls future and
taxable meome will be available against which the temporary differenees can be utilized.

The carrving amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extont that it 13 no longer probable that sufficient taxable income will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax assects to be utilized.  Unrecognized deferred tax asscts arc reassessed al each
balance sheet date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profit will allow the deferred tax assels o be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilitics are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply m the vear
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax mtes (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted af the balance sheet date,

Deferred tax relating to items recogmized outside the consolidated statement of income 15 recognized
outside the conzolidated statement of income.  Deferred tax itoms are recognized in correlation to the
underlving transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in cquity.

Delerred tax asscts and deferred tax labilitics arc offser, if a legally enforceable right exists to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same tax authority. Subsidiaries operating in the Philippines file meome fax return on an
individual basis, Thus, the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities arc offSet on an per entity
basis,
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AT
Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities arg recognized net of the amount af VAT, except:

»  where the VAT meurred on a purchase of asscts or services 15 not recoverable from the tax
authority, mwhich case the VAT is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the assct or as
part of the expense item as applicable; and

»  reecivables and pavables that are stated with the amount of VAT included.

“The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authonity is included as part of
“Prepayvments and other current assets™ or “Accounts pavable and other current liabilities™ accounts,
respectively, in the consolidated statements of financial position,

Eauminis Per Share

Earmings per share is computed by dividing the net income attributable to equity holders of the
Parent Company for the vear by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year
adjusted 1o give retroactive effect to any stock dividends declared during the year.

Basic carnings per share is caleulated by dividing the net income attributable to equity holders of the
Parent Company for the vear by the weighted average number of common shares cutstanding during
the wear.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the adjusted net income attnibutable to equity
holders of the Parent Company for the vear by the weighted average number of shares taking into
acecunl the effects of all potential dilutive common shares.

Seoment Beporing

For management purpases, the Group is organized and managed sepamtely according to the nature
of the business. These operating businesses are the basis upon which the Group reports its segment
information presented in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,

An operating segment is a component of an entity:

a. that engages in business activities from which it may eam revenues and mour expenses
{including  revenues and expenses relating to transactions with other components of the same
cobiy:

b. with operating results regularly reviewed by the entity’s chief operating decision maker o make
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and o assess its performance; and

¢ for which diserate financial information is available,

Conlingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements, They are disclosed

in the notes to the consolidated financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources

embaodving economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are net recognized in the consolidated
financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements when an
inflow of ceonomic benefits is probable.

Events after the Reporting Date

Anv post vear<nd cvent that provides additional information about the Group's financial position
at the reporting date (adjusting event) is reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Paost
vear-end events that arc not adjusting cvents, if any, arc disclosed when material 0 the
consolidated financial statements,
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Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the consolidaed financial statements I accordance with PFRS requires
management to make judgments, cstimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
consolidated fimancial statements based on evalvation of relevant facts and circumstances ae the
reporting date. Future ¢vents may occur which can cause the asswumptions used in arriving at those
judgments and cstimates to change. The offeets of any chanpes will be reflected in the consalidated
financial statements as they hecome reasonably determmable.

Judoments

In the process of apphing the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgrments, apart from those invelving estimations, which bave the maost significant effect on
amounts recoenized in the consolidated financial statements:

Property Acquisition and Business Combination

The Group acquires real estate propertics. At the time of acquisition, the Group considers whether
the acquisition represents an acquisition of 4 business or a group of asscts and labilitics, The Group
accounts for an acquisition as a business combination if it acquires an integrated set of business
processes in addition to the real estate property.  The consideration is made to the extent that the
significanl business processes arg acquired and Lhe addibonal services to be provided by the
subsiduary,

When the acguisinon of subsidiary does not constitute a business, 1t 15 accounted for as an
acguisition of a group of assets and labilitics. The purchase price of the acquisition is allecated 1o
the asscts and liabilities acquired based upen their relative fair values at the date of acquisition, no
woocdwill oo deferred tax is recognized.

In 2004, the Group accounted for the acquistion of the 20% equity interest of Alphaland
Crevelapment, lie. (Alphaland} in SGCPI and FBSHI as a business combination achivved i siages
isee Mote 120,

Assessing Significand Inffuence over dssociates

Significant influence is presumed when there is a holding of 20% ar more of the voting power of the
wvestee {(held directly or indirectly, through subsidiaries). Management assessed that the Group has
significant influence over all its associates by vinue of the Group’s holding mare than 20% voting
power in the investee, representation on the board of directors, and participation 1 policy-making
processes of the associates.

Distinetiver hetween Properties Held For Safe, Investment Properties and Property and Eqguipment
The Group determines whether a propertv is to be classified as a propenty held for sale or an
tvestment property through the following:

= Propaitics held for sale comprise propertics that are held for sale in the ordinary course of
busingss. These are condomimum units that the Groop developed or is developing and inlends
to scll.

= lovestinenl properties comprise land and buildings which are not occupied, substantially far use
bw. or in the operations of, not for salz in the ordinary course of bustness of the Group, but arg
held primarily to earn rental income or capital appreciation.
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The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment property or an item of propernty
and cquipment. In making its judgment, the Group considers whether the property gencrates cash
flows largely independent of the other assets held by the Group. Proparty and equipment generate
cash flows it are attributable not only to them but also to the other asscls used in the operations ol
the CGroup.

Some properties comprise a portion that is to eam rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the operation or for administrative purposes. If these portions cannot
be sald separately at the reporving date, the property is accounted for as an investment property only
if an msigmificant portion 15 held for use in the operation or for administrative purposes. Judgment is
applicd in determining whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does not qualify
as an mvestment property, The Group considers each property separately m making 1ts judgment.

The carrving values of properties held for sale, investment properties, and property and equipment as
of December 21, 2004 and 2013 amounted to B3.773,117.694, 27110867 485, BAT.009.417 and
B2 443 309795, P26,743.225.950, B6T 095,620, respectively (see Notes 8, 13 and 16).

Faluation of Invesement Praperiies

The Group’s financial controller and the managers of cach property determing the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of the investment properties,  External wvaluers are
involved m the valuation of investment propertics as decided ammally by the Group. The selection
eriteria for the external valuers include market knowledge. reputation, independence and whether
profissional standards are maintained,

Al cach repocting date, the Group analyzes the movements in the values of investment properties
wluch are required to be re-racasured or re-assessed as por the Group's accounting policies. For this
analvsis, the Group verifies the major inputs by agrecing the mformation in the valuation
computation te contracts and other relevant decumenots,

Based on the analvsis performed by management, the Group bas coneluded that the i value
adjugtment i 200 4 and 2013 s nagmficant (see Note 13}

{lassification of Leases as Operating Lease

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investiment property portfalio where it
has determined that it retains the significant risks and rewards related to the ownership of the sud
uwvestinent propertics.

The carrving values of nvestment properics as of December 31, 2004 and 2013 amounted to
BAZ L0867 488 and 826,743,225 930, respectively (see Motz 13).

Impairment of AR5 Egretsy Financial Asvels

The Group treats AFS equity financial assets as impaired when there has been a significant or
prolonged decling in the fair value bolow its cost or whether other objective evidence of impairment
exists, The determination of what is “significant”™ and “prolonged” requires judgment. The Group
generally treats a decling of 20% or more of the original cost as “significant” and a period greater
than six months as “prelonged”™  In addition, the Group evaluates other factors including normal
velatility in share prices for quoted securities, future cash flows and discount factors for unquoled
ACCUTINCE.
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The carrving valucs of AFS equity financial asscts amounted to #502,822 842 and $302,322 842 as
of December 31, 20014 and 2013, respectively (zee Note 13). Based on management’s assessment,
there has heen oo significant or prolonged decline in the farr value of AFS cquity financial assets,
thus. no wnpaient loss was recognized i 2004, 20103 and 2012

Deierminaiion of the Funetional Currency

Based on the cconomic substance of the underlyving circumstances relevant to the Parent Company,
management determined its functional currency to be the Peso. It is the currency that mainly
mfluences the revenues, and costs and expenses of the Group,

lassification of Financl Instruments

The Group classifies a financial strument, or its component, on nitial recognition as 2 financial
asset, a financial lability or an equily instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangement and the definitions of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrament.  The
substance of a fnancial mstrument, rather than its legal form, governs its classification i the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Financial assets are classified as financial asscts at FVPL, Ioans and reccivables, HTM financial
asscts, and AFS financial asscts. Financial habilities, on the other hand, are classified as financial
liabilities at FVPL and other financial abilities. The Group determmines the classification at ininal
recounilion and re-svaluates the classification af every reporting date,

Revenee Hecosmition

Selecting an appropriate revenue reeognition method for a parDicular real estate zale transaction
requires cemain judgments based on the buyer’s commitment on the sale which may be ascertamed
through the significance of the buver’s imtial investment and completion of development. The
buver’s commirment 15 evaluated based oo collections, credit standing and location of the property.
Completion of development s determuined based on engineer’s judgments and estimates an the
plivsical poction of contract work done and the completion of develepment bevond the preliminary
slaoc.

Condominmm sales recognized amounted 1o 3,764 27T 893 B3 933 170304 and P2,698 045 454
in 2014, 2003 and 2012, respectively.

{onfingenrcies

The Group s curcently involved in various legal proceedings. The estimates of the probable costs
for the resolution of these claims have been developed in consultation with the cutside legal counsel
handling the defense in these matters and are based upon analyses of potential reports. Based on
management’s assessment, these proceedings will not have a material effect on the Group's financial
pasition and performance (see Note 320,

The kev assumptions concerning he future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date that have a significant risk of causing materal adjustments to the carrving amounts of
asscts and liabilities are as follows:

Porgturse Price Alfocation in Business Comlination,

The acquisition method requires extensive use of accounting estimates and judgments (o allocate the
purchasc price to the fair market values of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities at
acquisition date. B also requires the acquirer to recognize goodwill, The Group's acguisition during
the sear has resulted in goadwill
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O Apnil 30, 2014, the Group acquired the 20% equity interest of Alphaland in SGCP1 and FESHI
The Group recognized goodwill from the business combination amounting to B269.870.364
izee Motes 12 and 17).

Valuatan of Financial Instrumeris

Financial instruments carried at fair values require the vse of accounting estimates.  While
sigmificant components of fair value measurement are determined using verifiable olbjective
cvidenee, it would differ if the Group utilizes a different valuation methodology, Any changes in the
fair valugs of financial instruments will affecr profit or loss and equity.

The fair values of financial instruments on initial recognition are normally the transaction prices.
These prices are indicative of actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length

s,

The fair values of the Group's financial assets at FVPL and AFS financial assets traded in active
markets arc based on quoted market prices at the reperting date. The queted market prices used for
financial assets held for trading are the cumrent bid prices.  The Group’s installment contracts
receivable’s and deposits from tepants” fair values are based on the present values of estimated
firture cash flows discounted using prevailing pre-tax discount rates at the reporting date. The fair
values of the other financial instruments are estimated by discounting the fuwre contractual cash
flows at the current market interest rates that are available to the Group at the reporting date for
similar financial instruments. The fair value measurement hicrarchy of the Group’s financial
mstruments 15 disclosed in Note 34,

Fstimation of Allowance for Impeaivment of Receivalies

The Group maintaing an allowance for impairment of receivables at a level considered adeguate to
provide for potentially uncollectible receivables. The level of this allewance is ¢valuated by
management on the basis of the factors that affect the collectibility of the accounts. These factors
include, but are not limited to, the length of the Group's relationship with the customer, the
customer’s payment behavior and known market factors, The Group reviews the age and status of
receivables, and identifies accounts that are to be provided with allowance oo a continuous basis.

Bad debis  recogmized o 2004, 20013 and 2002 amounted to BO82362 mil  and
P11.426470, respectively (see Note 23), Allowance for impairment of receivables amounted (o
B4.056.439 and B7.074,077 as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The carrying values of
the Group's receivables amounted to B4,162,249,384 and $3.534.271,525 as of December 31, 2014
and 2013, respectively (sce Note 7).

Hstimation af POC of the Profects

The Group's revenue and eost recognition policies require management to make use of estimates and
assumptions that may affect the reported amounts of revenue and costs. The Group’s revenue from
condominium sales, recognized based on the POC, are measured principally on the basis of the
actual costs incured o date over the total cstimated project costs and by reference to the estimated
completion of a physical propertion of the contract work. The total project costs are estimated by
the Grroup’s technical staff and are independently revicwed by the Group’s third party consultants.
At cach reporting date, these cstimates are reviewed and revised to reflect the current conditions,
when necessary,
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OSP is 88.00% and 72.12% complete as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, 33P is
28%.00% and 12.81% complete as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, The Rise iz LERY
complete as of December 31, 2014

Estimation of NRF

Prapertics held for sale are carried at the lower of cost and NRY. NRV for completed condominium
units is the estimated selling price of condominium unit less estimated costs neeessary to make the
sale, NRV in respect of condominium units under construction is the estimated sclling price of a
condomimium unit less estimated costs to complete the construction, less estimated time value of
money Lo the date of completion and less estimated costs necessary to make the zale.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, propertics held for sale amounted to P3.773,1 17,694 and
P2 443 500,793, respectively (sce Note 8}

Determination of Fair Values of Investment Properties

The Fair values of mvestment properties are determined by independent real estate valuation cxperls
using recognized valuation technigues. The fair value of the Group's land is determined using the
market comparison method, Under the market comparison method (or tarket comparison
approach), a propetty’s fair value is estimated based en comparable transactions, The market
comparison approach is based upen the principle of substitution under which a potential buyer will
not pay more for the property than it will cost to buy a comparable substitute property. In theory, the
best comparable sale would be an exact duplicate of the subjeet property and would indicate, by the
known selling price of the duplicate, the price for which the subject property could be sold. The unit
of comparison applied by the Group is the price per square meter (sgm). The market comparison
approach is oflen used in combination with either DCF or the income capilalization method as many
inputs o these methods are based on market comparizon. ln some cases, fair values arg determianed
based on recent real estate transactions with similar characteristics and in the location w those of the
Group's assets. In the absence of such informatian, the Group determines the amount within a range
af reasonable fair value estimates. In making its judgment, the Group considers information from
variety of sources including:

4. currenl prices in an active market for properties of different nature, condition or location
{or subject to different lease or other contracts), adjusted to reflect those differences,

b, recent prices of similar propertics in less active markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes
in sconomic conditions sinee the date of the transactions that oceurred at those prices: and

DCF projections based on reliable estimates of future cash flows, derived from the terms of any
existing lease and other contracts and (where possible) from cxternal evidence such as cwrent
market rents for similar propertics in the same location and condition, and using pre-tax discount
cates that reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty in the amounts and timing of the
cash flows.

Eal

The significant methods and assumptions used by the valuers in estimating fair valucs of investment
properties arc set out in Note 13, The fair values, which are also the carrving values of investment
propertics. amounted to P27,110.867 488 and £26.743 225,950 as of December 31, 2014 and 2013
{soe Mote 130,
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UL of Property and Bgnipment

The Group estimates the EUL of property and equipment based on the internal technical evaluation
and experience with similar assets, EUL of properly and cquipment are reviewed periodically and
updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical and
commergial obsolescence and other limits on the use of property and equipment. There were no
changes in EUL of the Group’s property and cquipment. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the
carrving values of property and equipment amounted to Ba7,009.417 and BT 095 620, respectively
(see Wote 16).

Inigivmer of Noafinarotad Assels, Ineliding Goodwifll

The Group assesses whether theve are any indicators of impairment for all nonfinancial assets at
every reparting date. Nonfinancial assets with indefinite life such as goodwill are ested for
imparrment annually and at other times when impairment indicators exist. Other nonfinancial assets
are tested for impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable.

The factars that the Group considers important which could trigger an impairment review inelude the
following:

o significant underperformance relative to expeeted historieal or projected future operating results;

= significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assels or the strategy for evemll
business; and

«  sipnificant negative industry or ceonomic trends,

[t any such indication exists or in ¢ase of nonfinancial asscts with indefinite life, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated. Whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds itz recoverable
amount. an impairment loss is recomnized, The recoverable amount 15 the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and value inuse. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash
Hows expected (o arise from the continuing wse of the asset and from its disposal at the end of its
uzeful life, Recoverable amount 15 estimated for an individual asset or, if it is not possible, for the
CGLU b which the asset helongs

In 20013, the Group made a reassessment of the recoverable amount of the real estate development
project of KRC due 1o the approval by its Board of its redevelopment. Accordingly, gain on the
reversal of impairment loss on this project recognized in profit or loss in 2013 amounted to
FI8L.954.697 (sce Note 14).

Agof December 31, 2014 and 2013, based on management’s assessment, there are no indications of
impairment for the rest of the Group’s nonfinaneial assets composed of properties held for sale,
prepayments and other current assets, inveshment in associates, investment properties, real estate
development projects, property and equipment and goodwill,

Fstimaiion of Redirenent Benefit Cosis

The cost of defined benefit plan as well as the present valug of defined benefit obligation is
determined using actuanial valuations.  Actuarial valuations involve making various assumptions.
These include the determination of the discount rates, future salary increases, mortality rates and
future retirgment increases. Due to the complexity of the valuations, the underlyving assumptions
and the long-term nature, defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes m the
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at cach reporting date. The net defined benefit liability as
of December 31, 2004 and 2013 are B35,626 328 and 229,602,931, respectively (see Mote 27}

&6

SHANG PROPERTLIES FRUR



Tn determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the intergst rates ol povermment
bonds that are deneminated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, with extrapolated
miaturities corresponding ta the expected duration of the defined bencfit abligation.

The morality mate 15 based on publicly available mortality tables and is modified accordingly with
estimates of maortality improvements. Future salary increases and retirement increases are based on
expected future inflation rates,

Further details about the assumptions used are provided in Note 27,

Realizahilivy of Deferred Income Tax Assets

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of deferred income tax assels at ¢ach reporting date and
reduces them to the extent that it 15 no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized. The Group expects to
penerate sufficient future taxable profits to allow its recognized deferred income tax assets to be
utilized. Deferred income tax assets recopnized ag of December 31, 2014 and 2013 amounted to
B500 792 963 and B432,6235 901, respectively (see Note 29). The unrecoznized deferred income tax
assets of the Group are disclosed in Note 29,

Segment Information

The Group's operating businesses are organized and managed according to the nature of the products
and sorvices marketed, with each segment representing a strategic busingss unil that offers different
products and serves different markets.

The Group has operations only in the Philippines.
The Group derives revenues from Dwo main segments as follows:

Property Develdopment
Thig business segment pertaing to the sale of condeminium units.

Leasing
This business segment pertains to the leasing operations of the Shangri-La Plaza Mall, TEC and their
related carpark operations. It also includes leasing of a portion of the Parent Company’s land to
ESHRT.

Other business segments pertain to praperty management services and the results of operations of
real estate entities and BYI companics.

Except for the rental revenue from ESHRI, revenues come from transactions with third parties.
There is no transaction with a single external customer that amounts to 10% or more of the Group’s
AREICAle revenues.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents
This account consists of:

2014 2013

Cash on hand and in banks Bd(4,681,437 P143 428967
Cash equivalents 2506323383 1748,017.981
BE2911,0045820 #189] 446943

Cash in banks carn interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates, Temporary investments are made for
threc months ar less depending on the immediate cash requirement of the Group and carn interest at
the respective temporary investment rates, Temporary Investments, which have an average matuarity
of 30 davs, cam interest ranging from 1.75%to 2.00% in 2014, 1.00% to | 88% in 2013, and 3.40%
to 3.33% in 2012,

Taral intcrest meome carned from cash in banks and cash cquivalents amounted to B23.492 852,
P4 431 835 and 233,284,973 in 2014, 2013 and 2012 respectively (see Note 23},

A5 of December 31, the Group's cash and cash equivalents mclude United States Daollar (US$) and
Hong Kong Dollar (HK$) deposits with local banks as follows:

1S Dollar HE Dollar
2014 2013 2014 2013
Fareign currency S1,488,019 1,153,264 $218,002 T3TILRO2
Peso cquivalent B66,544,230 B31,199.142  R1,233,513  F2,129.349
Closing cxchange rate per deollar
as at December 31 P44.72 B44.39 B5.75 B3T3

Unrealized forcign exchange gains charged to profit or loss amounted to BES0,730 m 2014 and
B4 0OR1.797 i 2013,

.

Financial Assets at FVPL

Financial asscts at FVPL represent shares of stock of various publicly listed companies as of
December 31, 2004 and 2013,

The movements in this account arc as follows:

2014 2013
Beginning balance P30,348,704 B2 775 696
Fair value adjustment (Mote 23) 2,663,820 (1,926992)
Ending balance 233,012,524 B30,344,704

The Group recognized unrealized gains (losses) on fair value adjustments of the investments
amounting to 2,663,820 in 2014, (#1.926,992) in 2013, and P4.936,110 m 2012 {see Mote 23).
Thers werg ne additions or disposals in 2014 and 2013,

71

SHANG PROPERTIES | 2014



7. Receivables

This account consists aof:

2014 2003
Trade;

Installment contracts receivabla P2R42,228,69 B2229966071
Hent (MNote 31) 201,286,080 [39 562,39

Montrada:
Advances to contractors and suppliers 1,031,179.038 1,133,149,175
Relatid partics (Note 31) 42,794,110 23761686
Advances to officers and emplovees 7,695,914 1,373,381
Listerest 1,697,524 [ 16d iad
Others 43,424 463 [2,368.799
4,1 70,305,823 3541345602
Less allowanee for impairment loss 8,056,439 7074077
B4,162,249384 B3 334 271335

lustallment contracts receivable represent noninterest-bearing receivables from sale of condominium
units with average term ranging from one to five vears. Installment contracts receivables are subject
to either bank financing or in-house financing and are discounted vsing prevailing interest rtes at
the dates of transactions.  The differences between the present values and face wvalues of the
receivables are amortized using the EIR method over the ternn of the respective conitacts,  Interest
income from accretion of mstallment contmets recervable amounted 1o B236 879 642, P22E 037 161
and P226, 2485376 10 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively (see Note 23

Advances ro contractors and suppliers are noninterest-bearing downpayments made to them and are
recouped upon every progress billings payment depending on the pereentage of completion.

Rental reccivables are nonnterest-bearing and pertain to rental foes charped to tenants and to the
Group’'s affiliales for the office, commereial and carpark spaces. The normal credit terms range
from 30 to 60 days.

Advances to officers and employees are normally settled within the next financial year.

The rerms, balances and transactions with related partics are disclosed in Note 31

Crther receivables are noninterest-bearing and consist of banner and non-tenant related receivables.

The movements of the allowance for doubtful accounts in 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

2014 2013
Beginning balanee 7,074,077 P7.074,077
Bad debts 082,362 -
Ending balance B5,056,439 #7,074,077
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The following table shows the expected cash flows from nstallment contmets receivable as of
December 31:

2014 2013

Expected cash flows in:
2014 P E2387802128
2013 4,795,800,1 75 2,619 0538049
201464 1,000,457 377 305,512,957
2017 570,040,049 30,173,441
201% 647 885,065 =
7.113,189,569 3,632 438575
Less unamortized diseount and unearnad incoms 4,270,960,875 3.402.472.504

P1,842,228604 P2 170066071

As of Docomber 31, 200114 and 2013, excess collections from cendominium unit buyers based on the
percentage of completion method were mecorded as part of the “Customers” deposits”™ aceount
amounting to PO43 320 881 and 200,056,899, respectively (see Note 18]

The movements in the unamorized discount and uncamed income on mstallment contiacls
receivable are as follows:

2014 2013
Begmming balanee B3,402,472504 B4 23H 508419
Additions 4,869,645906  3.227.171550
Recognized as sales and interest income (4,001,157,535) (4,163,207 465)
Ending balance B42TO900,875 B3I 402 472504
Properties Held for Sale
This account consists of:
014 2013
Condomininm units held for sale £103,708,502 BLIW 518437
Construction in progress 5,669,349,192 2,323,001 354

B5,773,117694  B2445 509795

Condeminium units for sale pertain to the completed residential condominium projects of the Group.

Construction in progress pertains to the Group’s on-going residential and mixed-use condominium
projects,

The movements m S Condominium umits held for sale”™ account are as follows:

24 2003
Beginning balance P119,518437 B2 446,366
Recognized cost of condominium sales {MNote 24) (15,749,935) (90,927,924
Ending balance 103,768,502 BII9 318437
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The movements in “Construction in progress” account are as follows:

i 2014 2013
Beginning balance B2,323991,358 B3 139517781
Construction or development ¢osts incurred 5,772,052,021 2,084 334752
Recognized cost of condominium sales (Note 24) {2,426,694,187)  (2,900,086,175)
Ending balance B5,665.345,192 PB2323 991358
Construction in progress consists of:

2014 2013
Comstruction costs B3689,140346  BLOTOOLID26T
Land 1,323,291,070 825 295950
Project management 369,473,200 263,603,229
Protessional and consulancy fees 187,444,567 (63081912

B5,669,349,192  B232399]358

The Group has no unusual purchase commitments as of December 31, 2014 and 2015,

Condominium units held for sale and construction in progress are stated at cost as of December 31,
2014 and 2013. There were no allowances for inventory write-down as of December 31, 2014 and
2013,

Prepayments and Other Current Assets

2014 2013
[nput tax B1,039,008,790 BIOOE1Z 148
Cash i escrow 352,027 489 -
CWT 122,707,813 127 938 204
Prepaid commission 159,004,639 (43,394 878
Other prepaid expenses 32,443,275 56,514,002

B1,505,192,006 P407 639,236

Input tax represents VAT paid to suppliers that can be claimed as credit agamst the future output
WAT liabilities without prescription,

Cash in ¢scrow pertains to the cash deposited with a local bank m compliance with the cscrow
agreement between TRDCI, a local bank and the Housing and Land Use Regulatory Board
(HLURB). The cash in escrow shall be released upon written notice of the HLURB to an escrow
agent upon submission by TRDCI of certain requircments.  Pursuant to the escrow agreement, the
HLURRB issued a tempaorary license to sell to TRDCL

CWT is the ts withheld by the withholding agents from pavments to the Group which can be
applied against the income tax pavable,

Prepaid commission pertaing to the excess of the commission paid to property consultants and
hrokers. and the commission expense for the year based on the percentage of completion.

Other prepavments mainly consist of advance payments for insurance, real property taxes. rent, and
other expenses which ars normally utilized within the next financial year.
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10 Investments in Associates

This account consists of
2014 2013
Acguisition costs
Beginning balance B2,290,385,110  B2,358 849343
Reclassification as a result of business
combinations (Mot 12) (1,8309.5277.485) -
Additions to mvestment 15,000,000 G, L 000
Disposal of investment - (74,561.233)
Ending balance 495 810,625 2290388110
Accumulated share in net profits
Bugmning balance 150,922,180 155 506250
Reclassification as a result of business
combinations (Mot 12) 1226,249.67H -
Share 0 net Josses of associates {9,692,903) {4,674,079)
Ending balance (85,020,396) 130,922 180
B410,790,229  BZA441 310290

On April 30, 2014, the Group obtained control over both SGCPI and FBSHI through step acquisition

as discussed i Mote 12,
subsichary 15 B2 035 827 158,

The amount of investment 1n associate reclassified to investment in

In 2013, the Group sold 623,800 common shares representing 33% inlerest in EPRC for a total
consideration of BS2 000,000, Gain on the disposal of EPRC shares recogmized in the profit or loss
amounted o BT 438767 (sce Mote 23).

The Group is restricted from declaring dividends out of the accumulated share in net profits uniil
these are declared by the associates.

All of the Group's associates are considered to be immaterial individually. The Group’s associates

are as follows:

Percentages of Ownership

2014 20132
Skv Leisure Properties, Inc. (SLPI) S0.00%: 30.00%
ldeal Sites and Properties, Inc. (ISPI) 40_00% 40, 00%
Shang Global City Propertics, Inc. (SGCPLY* = 400059
Forl Bonifacio Shangri-la Hotel, Inc. (FBSHI)** - 00
Others various VArious

* The Parant Company effeciively ovas G036 aquity iterest in SGOPLas of Decentber 31, 2004 (see Nove 12}
*% Cyovigusty owaed tirorgh SFRHT: merged with SGCP the surviving entify, in iz eservent veor free Nose [ 2

The aggrepate amount of the Group’s share in the net gains (lodses) afier tax and total
comprehensive income (losses) of these associates are (R9,692,903) 10 2014, (P4,674.079) in 2013

and B29 490674 in 2012,

As m December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group has no share in any contingent liabilitics or capital

conmmtments.

)
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11 Material Partly-Owned Subsidiary

The proportion of equity interest held by the NCIof KSA and SGCPL, the Group's subsidiaries with
MCT that are deemed material, are as follows:

2014 2013
K5A 47.1% 47.1%
SGCPI 40L0% -

The summarized financial information of material subsidiaries are provided below. Tlas information
5 based on amounts before inter-company climinations.

K54 Realty Corporation

2014 2013
Summarized Statements of Comprehensive
Rental rovenue BO0S,609,013 B236 632 466
General and adnuinistrative cxpanses (61,821,207) (64 206.912)
Financs cost - nel (1,724,886) (5,906,763}
Other nicome - net 7567326 3,790,850
Income before income {ax 849,630,656 770,335 671
Provision for income tax {159 322 635) (1507439103
Total comprehensive income BGO0, 308,021 RB319,5391,761
Met income and total comprehensive income
attributable to:
Eguity holders of the Parent Company B365,172,943 B327 704,042
NI 325,135,078 291827719
i POUD30E02] ?6155'.__59[,?5]_
Dividends paid to NCI E376,800,000 Bled 850,000
Summarized Statements of Financial Position
Current assets #492,715,947 RANSD, 146 406
Mongument assets 81054382324 8130403514
Current liabilitics {396,686,088) (282 405.078)
Moncurrent habilitics {1,823,018,2300  (1,740,689.622}
Eepairy B6, 378449853 B63 164535227
Equity attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company B3374,199972  P3447227332
ML 3,004,249.881 3060270478
B5378.449833 P6,516,497 830

SHANG
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2014 213

Summarized Statements of Cash Flows

Operting activitics B770,305 062 BAGR 247 235
Investing activitics (3,757.034) {1,377 852)
Fingneing activitics (691,073,780 (386,372512)
Met offect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash 2,823 26490
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents B75,567 069 BR(,323361

Shang Clobal City Praperties, Inc

2014
Summarized Statement of Comprehensive Income
Snle of condeminiun units P425.762,627
Cost of sales of condomimum units (208,513,636)
General and administrative expenses (16,697,532
Oither oo - net 4,464,422
Incommne before income tax 205,015,881
Provision for income tax 58,303,499
Total comprehensive income P146,712,382
Met imcome and total comprehensive income attributable to;
Equity holders of the Parent Company BEE027429
NI 58,684,953
P146,712,382
Summarized Statement of Financial Position
Current asscts P4.279,418,110
Moncurrent assets 8,200.510,828
Current habilitics (5,393,047,264)
BMancurrent liabilities (6$,833,359,635)
Ecqpuiry B343,522,039
Equity atrributable o
Equity holders of the Parent Company P206,113,223
MCT 137,408,316
) £343,522,039

Az a resull of the business combination in 2014, NCT was remeasured in the consolidated statement
of financial position resulting o additional balance amounting to PE23.671.481 (sce Notz 12}

2014
Summarized Statement of Cash Flows
Operating activities (B#2.949.489,701})
Investing activities (182,322,63%)
Financing activities 3.378,025,0(0
Met cffect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 156,996
Met inerease in cash and cash equivalents P246,369.656
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Mo dividends were paid to SGCPTs NCLin 2014,

The principal place of business of KSA iz at 5th Floor, Tower 2, The Enterprise Center. 6766 Avala
Avenue comer Paseo de Roxas, Makat City wiale the principal place of business of SGCPL is at
Crescent Park West District, Fort Bonifacio Global City. Taguig City.

. Business Combination

Acquisition of adeditional 20% equiiv interest in SGOPT and FESHT

SGCPIL and FBSHI are the develapers of a mixed-use hotel, condominium, and retail tower, located
in Bonifacie Global City, Taguig to be known as Shangri-La at the Fort, The project is 54,73%
completed as of December 31, 2014, Pre-selling of the residential units has already commenced in
2014 while the hotel is expected to begin operations in 2015

On April 30, 2014, SGCHI and SFBHI, both wholly owned subsidiarics of the Parent Company,
cach entered nto an agreement and acquired the 209 equity iterest of Alphaland Development, Inc.
i(Alphaland) in SGCPLand FBSHL

Prior 1o the acguisition, the Parent Company through SGCHI and SFBHI effectively owned 40%
equity interest in SGCPI and FBSHI. SGCHI and SFBHI each acquired from Alphaland additional
20% interest in SGCPL and FBSHI, respectively, for a total cash  consideration of
B1,700,000,000. As a result of the step acquisition, the Group obtained controlling interest in
SGCPLand FBSHI avning 60% equity intercst over cach of the acquired entities.

The following are the fair values of the identifiable assets acquired and Habilities assnmed as of date
of acquisition;

SGCPI FESHI TOTAL
Awwery
Cash and cash equivalents B30.912485 BLT73,039.023 P234 951,508
Receivables 26,961 1,342,762 [,369723
Property under development o B0, 000, (A0 6,606,161,000  11,496,161,000
Prepavments and other current assets 271722020 566,766,301 B38, 488330
Praperty and cquipment - net - 2,786,769 2,780,759
Refundable deposit . 15375 800 13,2735 800
5,131,661 475 TA57 371633 12 389033, 130
Licthilities
Trade and other pavables 3,165,762 399 63T 815 402 803,577
Income 1ax pavable - 13,613 13,615
Long torm bank loan 4,008 499 138 4,008 499 138
Creposit for future stock subscription 1,976, 487,102 1941512 898 3.0 LR 00000
Deforred tax habaility TE2 412 892 154,636,230 937 071,122
2,762 065,736 6,504 321 606 9356387 452

Tatal identifiable net assets at fair value
Goodwill (Mote 17)

2369505719
140355211

B3 049 959
129,515,653

3.232.645,678
260,870,864

Acquisition cost $£2,504,950,930 PO92.5653,612  #3.502,516,542

As of acquisition date, the fair value of SGCPI's and FBSHI's property under development
amounted to B4 500,000,000 and B6 696,161,000, respectively, Their carrving amounts in SGCPT's
and FBSHI s books amounted to 2,373 840,000 and P&, 180 633 566, respectively,
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